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ABBOTT INDIA

HELPING PEOPLE LEAD THE BEST 
LIFE THROUGH GOOD HEALTH
Abbott India, part of Abbott’s Global 
Pharmaceutical business, is one of India’s 
most admired and fastest-growing 
pharmaceutical companies.
 
We, at Abbott India, provide consumers 
with market-leading, trusted, global and 
local products across various therapeutic 
categories such as Women’s Health, 
Gastroenterology, CNS, Metabolics, 
General Care, Vitamins, Vaccines, etc.

Our products are manufactured in 
India and also sourced from local 
third-party manufacturers in India. 
We have a manufacturing facility at 
Goa and are engaged with over 40 
third-party manufacturers in India.

IN INDIA, FOR INDIA

WHAT MAKES US UNIQUE?

LOCAL R&D FOR LOCALIZED 
SOLUTIONS
Our in-house development and medical 
teams work passionately to advance 
health by addressing the country’s 
unique challenges. We launched over 

years for meeting the increasing 
healthcare needs of society.
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A LEGACY OF EXCELLENCE

From creating an excellent workplace  
to making a positive impact on the 
health of people, we are proud of the 
work we do in India with the help of 
over 3,300 talented people.

EXPANSIVE HEALTH NETWORK

Our mission to enhance the health and 
well-being of Indians extends beyond our 
products to innovative methodologies 
and platforms across distribution 
channels. Through the distribution 
network of over 25 carrying and 
forwarding service providers and hubs, 
we reach out to millions of Indians.
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THIS IS 
ABBOTT INDIA

WE PROVIDE TOMORROW’S  
HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS TODAY  

AND CONTINUE TO OUTPERFORM

Try the augmented 
experience on this page 
through the AR app. CHAIRMAN’S

MESSAGE

We, at Abbott India, are 
redoubling our efforts to make 
quality branded pharmaceutical 
products accessible to more 
people in the country. We 
launched 21 new products  
this year and are gearing up to 
introduce over 100 new products 

efforts to spread education and 
awareness about various diseases 
are also intensifying. Our 
knowledge sharing initiatives 
with Healthcare Professionals - 
doctors, medical fraternities and 
pharmacists - are also expanding. 
Our commitment to helping 
people unlock life’s possibilities 
through the power of health 

is intrinsically aligned with a 
prosperous and healthy India.

A  HOLISTIC APPROACH TOWARDS 
GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT, HEALTH  
AND WELLNESS

MUNIR SHAIKH 
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

We, at Abbott India, have always worked with a 

lead healthier and better lives and the second is to 
continuously reward our shareholders by excelling 

Company successfully accomplished both these 
objectives. Once again, we achieved a remarkable 
Sales growth of 12.8% over the prior year, which 
was 1.6 times# the market growth.

As I look back, this was a landmark year for 
economies across the globe and India. As per  
the IMF, the world economy posted a growth  
of 3.8% in 2017, with a notable rebound in global 
trade. At US $2.6 trillion, the Indian economy 
became the sixth largest in the world. The 
country is well positioned to accelerate its growth 

 
year, as it recovers from the twin impacts of 
demonetisation and GST roll out. 

The Indian Pharmaceutical Market is estimated 
to be about 3.3% of the global Pharmaceutical 
Industry in value and 10% in volume. This 
is expected to grow to US $55 billion by 
2020, thereby emerging as the sixth largest 
pharmaceutical market globally. 

 
steps towards the promotion of this industry in 
India. ‘Pharma Vision 2020’ aims at making India 
a global leader in end-to-end drug manufacture.
Approval time for new facilities has been reduced 
to boost investments. The single-window facility 
has been announced to expedite new drug 
approvals and is expected to give a push to the 
“Make in India” initiative.   

During the year, all our business units performed 
well and contributed to the overall success of the 
Company. Eight out of our top ten products 
remained at No 1*  in their respective therapy 
segments and these ten products contributed to 
over 70% of the core business.   

 
`50 and special dividend of `5 per equity share of  
`10 each for the year ended March 31, 2018.

We, at Abbott India, are redoubling our efforts to 
make quality branded pharmaceutical products 
accessible to more people in the country. We 
launched 21 new products this year and are 
gearing up to introduce over 100 new products 

education and awareness about various diseases 
are also intensifying. Our knowledge sharing 
initiatives with Healthcare Professionals - 
doctors, medical fraternities and pharmacists - 
are also expanding. Our commitment to helping 
people unlock life’s possibilities through the 

FULLEST. - is a commitment that is intrinsically 
aligned with a prosperous and healthy India.

In order to deepen our patient commitment, 
we are foraying into sub-therapies within our 
established therapeutic domains. Our beyond-the-
pill orientation is aimed at giving much more than 
just medicine to our customers.

Our emphasis is on creating a sustainable growth 
blueprint, which is futuristic and viable. Our 
constant focus on innovation, diversifying the 
product portfolio, maintaining brand excellence, 
technology driven initiatives and value-added 

* Source: IMS Health

# core business

2016 2017 2018

2,
69

6 2,
99

6 3,
42

4

TOTAL REVENUE
(` IN CRORES)
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knowledge sharing initiatives will further 
strengthen your Company’s positioning as a 
committed, capable and compassionate organisation.

have an employee pool of over 3,300 talented 
and committed workforce, which is one of our 
most valuable assets. Their hard work and 
commitment has helped the Company to push 
all boundaries and stay ahead of the curve, even 
in a very volatile and competitive environment.  
Altogether, we have a holistic approach towards 
growth, development, health and wellness. 

I am proud to announce that your Company 
also won several prestigious awards this year 
including the most prestigious “Best Companies 
To Work For” by Business Today.

We sincerely recognise the contributions of our 
business partners and continue rewarding them 

company to compensate our stockists to cover their 
losses on account of transition to GST, thereby also 
ensuring continuous availability of medicines at 
the market place. Such initiatives help us build long 
lasting relationships with our business partners.

Next year will mark the completion of 75 years 
of your Company in India - another landmark in 
our history. We have once again developed strong 
strategies to ensure our business continues to 
outperform. Our focus remains on entering new, 
high-potential therapy areas while maintaining 
leadership in the areas we dominate. We will 
continue to push in under leveraged geographies 
and rural markets and remain committed to be 
responsive and agile.

With deep regret, we inform you about the 
untimely demise of Mr Ranjan Kapur. We 

contributions. Mr Bhasker Iyer and Ms Nancy 
Berce resigned as Directors upon their 
retirement from Abbott. We thank them for their 
contributions and wish them good health and 
success in their future endeavours. We welcome  
Ms Anisha Motwani and Mr Jawed Zia, who  
have recently joined the Board.

On behalf of the entire Board, I thank all our valued 
partners – our bankers, doctors, pharmacists and 
vendors who have always been very supportive and 
important contributors to our success. 

I am also thankful to all members of the Abbott 
family - our customers, employees and above all, 
our shareholders who have continued to place 
faith in the Management of the Company.

`3,424
crores 

`401
crores 

TOTAL
REVENUE

 PROFIT
AFTER TAX

11.7% 26.1%
PAT (% OF 

REVENUES)
 RETURN ON
 AVG CAPITAL

EMPLOYED

MUNIR SHAIKH 
Chairman
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PUSHING
BOUNDARIES,

STAYING AHEAD

Try the augmented 
experience on this page 
through the AR app.
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Our Sales growth of 12.8% was driven by multiple 

restructuring our product portfolio into key 
business areas – Women’s Health, Gastroenterology, 
Consumer Care, CNS, Metabolics, General Care and 
Vaccines. Among these, Women’s Health grew by 
19.1%, Vaccines grew by 59.7% and Metabolics grew 
by 15.3%.

AMBATI VENU
Managing Director

MANAGING 
DIRECTOR’S 
MESSAGE
PLAYING ON A STRONG WICKET
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Dear Shareholders,

The promise of enabling fuller, healthier lives 
is worth pursuing in every possible way, every 
single day. At Abbott India, we continue to 

human potential by helping people achieve their 
best health at every stage of their life.  We have 
had yet another year of excellent performance 
and I am happy to share the highlights with you 
through this Annual Report 2017-18.

Powerful business performance
We know how to deliver high-quality healthcare, 
and our heritage is proof that we are committed 
for the long-term. Our Sales growth of 12.8% was 
driven by multiple business imperatives. The 

portfolio into key business areas – Women’s Health, 
Gastroenterology, Consumer Care, CNS, Metabolics, 
General Care and Vaccines. Among these, Women’s 
Health grew by 19.1%, Vaccines grew by 59.7% and 
Metabolics grew by 15.3%. Clearly, the foundation of 
our business, is our brands and our people.  

Our brands are trusted by millions of patients 
and doctors across therapies. All our key brands 
have shown strong growth during the year and 
continue to lead in the market place. 

Relentless drive 
We continued to take on the mantle of launching 
market shaping initiatives in collaboration 
with cross-industry players and technology 
partners, even when we encountered challenging 
circumstances on a few fronts. 

In less than 8 months, the Indian economy 
encountered two powerful disruptors, both of 
which would go on to become positive enablers 
of economic growth and formalization, but we 
emerged stronger with renewed focus on core 
operational excellence. We introduced multiple 

ensured that economic changes did not come in 
the way of expectations.

We have an endless drive to bring meaningful 
innovation to our markets – in both medicines 
and the services that go along with them – to help 
people live healthier, fuller lives. We give people 
a reason to choose our medicines, and this model 
has led to consistent, exceptional growth.

At Abbott India, our 360 degree efforts to further 
and fortify our brand leadership in the chosen 
therapies helped us deliver another market 
beating performance in the year gone by. At 
`3,424 Crores, our Total Revenues grew by 14.3%. 

BUSINESS DIVISIONS* Key Brands

Duphaston  |  Udiliv
Cremaffin  |  Duphalac  |  
Creon  |  Heptral 

Women's Health & Gastrointestine (WH & GI), 
Gastroenterology, GI Prospera and GI Advance

Thyronorm  |  Vertin
Prothiaden

Specialty Care (Metabolics and  
Central Nervous System)

Enteroshield  |  Brufen
Arachitol Nano

GenNext and
Vaccines

Digene  |  Citrosoda |
Rashfree

Consumer Care

*The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. Pharmaceuticals.
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Future-Focused
As we set our eye on the future, rapid inroads into 
sub-therapies, accelerated new product launches, 
innovative marketing and deployment of digital 
tools, steady deepening of relationships with 
the doctor, pharmacist, patient trio, continued 
strengthening and expansion of our brand 
portfolio, and the collective living of a shared 
vision by an over 3,300 strong employee pool,  
will continue to be the central levers of our 
growth momentum. 

I thank you for your continued trust and 

Abbott India family on scripting another stellar 

board members for their valuable guidance 
and contributions. The future looks even more 
exciting and promising to me and I seek your 
support to co-create a healthier India and a  
value-creating company.

4̀01 Crores, our highest ever 

previous year. With our relentless efforts and 
differentiated approach, we consistently remain 
ahead of the market.

We continued our engagement with patients. 
During the last year, we were able to vaccinate 
over 20 Lakh people against Swine Flu and 
conducted Thyroid screening for over 21 Lakh 
people pan-India. 

Real Film. Real Heroes
We also continued to strengthen our brand identity, 
through our much appreciated campaign “Real 
Film. Real Heroes”, depicting how breakthrough 
innovations from Abbott have helped people 
live fuller and healthier lives.  The campaign, 
coupled with our value-added knowledge sharing 
initiatives, has ensured that the Company 
remains at the forefront with consumers and 
Healthcare Professionals.  

Beyond Pills
We are here to help people lead fuller, healthier 
lives. And in this mission, it is imperative for us to 
gain patient insights. We also leverage technology 
to connect and engage with various stakeholders. 
Notable initiatives include Thyroweight, the 
country’s largest Thyroid Awareness program 
where we reached 3.5 Crore people this year and 

that aimed at increasing awareness about the need 
for vaccination. Another high impact campaign in 
the year was breaking taboos with #Constipation 
Conversations.

Strong and motivated workforce
head 

Company’s success. During the year, we 
introduced various talent management and 
leadership initiatives aimed at attracting and 
retaining top talent and empowering them 
through several development programs.

* Source: IMS Health

AMBATI VENU
Managing Director
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We, at Abbott India, have always 
challenged the limits of what is possible 
and offered value through our products 
and services. Our commitment remains 
to help Indians lead healthier lives.

PUSHING 
BOUNDARIES, 
STAYING 
AHEAD
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ACCELERATED GROWTH DELIVERS 
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

CULTURE OF COLLABORATION

FUTURE-FOCUSED

While overall revenue grew by 14.3% to `3,424 Crores in  
, 

grow at 1.6 times# the market, 8* of our top 10 brands are 
market leaders in their respective segments.

Also, we facilitated better engagement with doctors and patients through technology-led innovative 
solutions in the form of augmented reality and virtual reality.

Total  
Revenue

`3,424 
Crores

1

3

2

Continuing tradition,  
Abbott India has delivered 
yet another strong business 

Employees play a vital role in building an inclusive culture across our business operations. Various 
training and leadership development programs were conducted during the year to help them maximise 
their potential. The Company reached out to help the broader community through programs such 
as the iCARE Road Safety Drive, Nirmal Dhara Dairy Project and SEWA, an initiative for creating a 
Sustainable Healthcare Delivery Model through Livelihoods.

We realise that the business 
we interact with people around us. Abbott India took an important step this year of ensuring a 
technologically connected organisation with a plan to launch

2,500 
iPADS 
FOR FIELD FORCE

* Source: IMS Health

Over

# core business
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                            PREVIOUS GAAP

OPERATING RESULTS 2008 2009 2010(13M)

TOTAL REVENUE# 701,21 795,93 1031,97

MATERIAL COST 454,62 504,17 647,30

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 48,92 62,37 111,20

OTHER EXPENSES# 96,32 102,80 168,03

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 6,98 9,01 11,25

FINANCE COST 2 20 4

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 94,35 117,38 94,15

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS - - -

PROVISION FOR TAXATION 31,49 39,87 33,21

PROFIT AFTER TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 62,86 77,51 60,94

EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC & DILUTED (`) 43.62 56.68 44.56

DIVIDEND PER SHARE (`)  14.00  17.00  17.00 

ASSETS EMPLOYED

FIXED ASSETS (NET) 50,63 49,15 50,57

OTHER ASSETS (NET) 171,38 222,41 254,82

TOTAL ASSETS 222,01 271,56 305,39

FINANCED BY

SHARE CAPITAL 13,68 13,68 13,68

OTHER EQUITY 207,57 257,88 291,71

TOTAL EQUITY 221,25 271,56 305,39

BORROWINGS 76 - -

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS 13,689 13,422 14,461

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 1,150 1,308 1,767

10 Year Financial Highlights
Accelerated Growth Delivers Business Performance

1
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IND AS @

2011* 2012 2014 (15M) 2015 2016 2017 2018

1528,07 1696,93 2358,39 2364,56 2696,23 2996,33 3424,11

861,21 971,65 1297,41 1311,96 1492,03 1712,06 1904,74

167,35 206,20 299,74 305,40 341,09 345,27 393,69

304,32 294,97 444,68 387,40 448,14 484,04 484,19

15,00 19,49 21,93 14,94 14,44 16,43 16,19

3 2 8 50 2,52 2,04 3,82

180,16 204,60 294,55 344,36 398,01 436,49 621,48

- 10,39 - - - - -

59,77 70,29 96,10 115,40 142,76 159,84 220,26

120,39 144,70 198,45 228,96 255,25 276,65 401,22

56.66 68.10 93.39 107.75  120.12  130.19  188.81 

 17.00  17.00  23.00  31.00  35.00  40.00 55.00** 

80,02 109,18 99,52 99,95 111,29 115,88 83,55

464,12 537,68 688,33 837,58 1084,31 1271,06 1609,21

544,14 646,86 787,85 937,53 1195,60 1386,94 1692,76

21,25 21,25 21,25 21,25 21,25 21,25 21,25

522,89 625,61 766,60 916,28 1174,35 1365,69 1671,51

544,14 646,86 787,85 937,53  1195,60 1386,94 1692,76

- - - - - - -

19,354 20,826 18,270 19,407 21,250 23,004 22,583

2,425 2,667 2,766 2,867 2,956 3,083 3,322
**Includes special dividend of `5/- per share.

* Post Merger with Solvay Pharma India Limited.
# Inclusive of Excise duty on sales / net of GST.

@The Company transitioned into IND AS from April 1, 2015, hence these numbers are not comparable with previous years.

All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Abbott India Limited | Annual Report 2017-18 | 15



Key 
Performance 
Indicators

PAT MARGINS
PAT (` IN LAKHS)

EBITDA (` IN LAKHS)REVENUE (` IN LAKHS)

* Annualised percentage

AVG. CAPITAL EMPLOYED (` IN LAKHS)

EBITDA MARGINS

RETURN ON AVG. CAPITAL 
EMPLOYED

23
64
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(15M)

2016 2017 2018

11.2%*

14.0%

25.3%*

11.1%
14.3%
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15.4%

15.2%

15.2%

18.7%
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45
4,
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1,4

9
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2,
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20152014
(15M)

2016 2017 2018

27.7%

23.9%

26.5%

21.4%

26.1%
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7,

36

12
91

,2
7

15
39

,8
5

REVENUE GROWTH

Accelerated Growth Delivers Business Performance

1

14.3% 18.7%

11.7% 26.1%
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37
24
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7
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7,
23
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57
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RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

GROWTH#

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

BOOK VALUE GROWTH

EARNING PER SHARE (`) EMPLOYEES (NOS)

RESERVES AND SURPLUS (` IN LAKHS)

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE (`)

CONTRIBUTION TO 
EXCHEQUER

EMPLOYEE COST

SHARE PRICE

*Includes special dividend of `5/- per share

#Excluding Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

MARKET CAPITALISATION ( ` IN LAKHS)

`55* `393,69

22.4% `644,65

22.1% `5,449

(` IN LAKHS)

(` IN LAKHS)

(AS AT MARCH 31)
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Accelerated Growth Delivers Business Performance

1

RETAINED EARNINGS & OCI*
6.0 %

DIVIDEND
(Includes Dividend Distribution Tax)
3.4 %

TAX
5.3 %

EMPLOYEE COST
11.5 %

MATERIAL COST
57.1 %

EXCISE DUTY ON SALES
1.2 %

DEPRECIATION
0.5 %

OTHER EXPENSES
15.0 %

FY 2016-17
Total Revenue `2996,33 Lakhs

Revenue
Distribution (%)

*Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

FY 2017-18
Total Revenue `3424,11 Lakhs

RETAINED EARNINGS & OCI*
7.6 %

DIVIDEND
(Includes Dividend Distribution Tax)
4.1 %

TAX
6.4 %

EMPLOYEE COST
11.5 %

MATERIAL COST
55.6 %

EXCISE DUTY ON SALES
0.3 %

DEPRECIATION
0.5 %

OTHER EXPENSES
14.0 %
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT FY 2017-18

STAKEHOLDERS  2017-18 2016-17
Payment to Exchequer  644,65 499,81

Payment to Employees   393,69 345,27

Payment to Shareholders*    116,87   85,00

Contribution to Society       9,12      7,14

Towards replacement and expansion#   275,43  188,90

Total Value Added 1439,76 1126,12

Goa Plant – Zero Waste 

of waste disposal

Goa Plant received  
 

Practices Award”

30% 
Reduction in total  
water intake

Water Usage

50% 
Reduction in total waste

Waste Management

3,300
Over

employees

Awarded ‘Best 
Companies to work for’ 
by Business Today

Leadership development
programs

Various initiatives on 
diversity and inclusion
such as Women Leaders 
of Abbott (WLA)

Program for Abbott 
Employees

`9,12
115.9%

Spend of

of mandatory spend

Collaborated with 17 
schools covering 18,823 
students, Over 15 Lakh 
people connected through 
iCARE Road Safety Drive

Over 1,500 smallholder 

through Nirmal Dhara 
Dairy Program

ENVIRONMENT PEOPLECSR

(` in Lakhs)

*Dividend excluding Dividend Distribution Tax  
#Replacement and expansion is Retained earnings + Depreciation
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Therapy-leading 
products 
Abbott India stands for quality, trust and partnership. We deliver quality healthcare 
through high-quality products. Our top 10 brands are leaders (at number 1 or 
2 position* ) in their respective segments. Our relentless pursuit of invention is 
delivering an unprecedented number of advances that will extend our impact and 
sustain our growth for years to come.

*Source: IMS Health

Accelerated Growth Delivers Business Performance

1

20 | Abbott India Limited | Annual Report 2017-18

Disclaimer: All products displayed/mentioned on this page are for illustration purpose only. Consult your doctor for  
professional medical advice.

  BRAND MARKET SHARE (%)# RANK#

24.3 1

51.7 1

15.1 2

29.8 1

9.5 2

13.7 1

14.4 1

51.4 1

34.8 1

7.3 1

@Source : IMS Health
#In Respective Participated Market
##Digene Range

##

PERFORMANCE OF TOP 10 BRANDS@
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address unmet patient needs
New products have not only been a source of growth for the business but have 
addressed medical gaps in multiple therapy areas. In FY 2017-18 we launched 
21 new products / product extensions. This shows our commitment to expanding 
our portfolios. We aim to continue this pace of growth in the future as well.

2
Future-Focused

22 | Abbott India Limited | Annual Report 2017-18

Disclaimer: All products displayed/mentioned on this page are for illustration purpose only. Consult your doctor for  
professional medical advice.

Above new product launches also include line extensions. In addition to our new product launches, 
we also upgraded the packaging for Creamaffin, Udiliv and Duphaston.

PRODUCT THERAPY AREA BUSINESS UNIT
Polycystic Ovary Syndrome Women's Health

Ovulation Women's Health

Gut Health Gastroenterology

Constipation Gastroenterology

NAFLD Gastroenterology

Laxative Gastroenterology

Diaper Rash Cream Consumer Care

Antacid Consumer Care

Digestive Consumer Care

Laxative Consumer Care

Pain Relief Consumer Care

Constipation GI Advance

Irritable Bowel Syndrome GI Advance

Diarrhoea / Hepatic Encephalopathy GI Advance

ALD/NALD GI Advance

Hepatitis C GI Prospera

Pain Management in Chronic Pancreatitis GI Prospera

ALD/NAFLD GI Prospera

Probiotic (Bacterial Vaginosis) Metabolics

Migraine CNS

Stroke / Brain Injury CNS

Paan Flavour

Lemon Flavour

20

NEW PRODUCTS
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SAFETY
A number of safety initiatives such as disposal  
of hazardous waste and sludge to Ultratech 
cement factories for co-processing, a successful 
Factory Mutual global inspection of safety 
procedures and launch of ‘Stop for Safety’ 
program for creating awareness of safety among 
employees were completed. The Goa plant is a 

 
or loss time incident during last 5 years. 
 

QUALITY 

The plant continuously strives to improve the 
quality of products manufactured. A number 
of licenses were renewed as well as audits by 
WHO and Abbott Quality and Regulatory teams 

for better product management and skilled staff 
were recruited for critical production equipment. 
Lastly, a number of engineering updates were also 
made to improve hygiene and work environment.

A safe, green and 

manufacturing facility

WE FOCUSED ON FOUR CRITICAL AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT –  
SAFETY, QUALITY, SERVICE AND OPERATIONS

3,900 171

1,250TABLET
VOLUME

LIQUIDS
VOLUME

DOSAGE
FORMS

NUMBER 
OF EMPLOYEES

million

Tablets and 
liquids

2
Future-Focused
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SERVICE 

The plant continues to operate at a high service 
level. The Key Performance Indicator for service 
is measured in terms of 'On Time In Full', which 

Duphalac were launched. A key project underway 
is to bring all tablet production in-house from 
third party manufacturers. 

OPERATIONS 

A number of operational improvements were 
undertaken at the plant to enhance productivity 

batch size was increased from 5.5KL to 10KL to 

to improve performance and yields.

Manufacturing facility at Goa
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GUTFIT

Gastrointestinal disease management.  

framework. A comprehensive program was 
created, which enrolled high-risk patients  
and provided them with virtual counseling, 
wearable devices for tracking health metrics  
and customised diet plans.

5.4

PARTNERSHIP  
WITH KEY OPINION
LEADERS

ASSISTED
PATIENTS

500

Creating value through 
differentiated services
Abbott India has taken a leadership role in the industry in implementing patient 
awareness and doctor engagement programs. We use the latest technology tools 
and adopt innovative, integrated, omni-channel marketing strategies. These efforts 
help our sales force create a unique positioning for Abbott India in the minds of our 
stakeholders. Some of our notable projects in FY 2017-18 were: 

2

CONSTIPATION FATTY LIVER ACIDITY IBS PANCREATITIS

THERAPIES COVERED

AWARENESS  |  DIAGNOSIS  |  TREATMENT  |  COMPLIANCE

Future-Focused
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THYROWEIGHT

This campaign aims to increase awareness 
among women (in the age group of 25-40) 
around the correlation between weight 
gain and thyroid disorders. A persona-led 
integrated marketing communication plan 
was deployed that aimed at easy and early 
diagnosis for clinicians and patients and to 
create more awareness amongst patients 
living with hypothyroidism.

PUBLIC RELATIONS 
CONNECT

TELEVISION 
REACH

HEALTHCARE
PROFESSIONAL  
REACH

TWITTER 
VISITORS

15

130

120

0.2
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#MOMVSFLU 
MOTHERS AGAINST  
INFLUENZA CAMPAIGN

was launched to make mothers aware of  the 
need for vaccination, in order to protect the fetus 
and the new born till the age of 3 years against 

led (mother bloggers, women twitterati)
conversations, with information shared by 
doctors, were started on digital media. We also 

 

2

TWITTER
IMPRESSIONS

UNIQUE PEOPLE 
REACH 46

510

Future-Focused
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EXPERIENTIAL MARKETING 
FOR DUPHASTON

The complex process of manufacturing 
Duphaston came alive through experimental 

reality experience zones at key conferences to 
to allow participants to create the Duphaston 
molecule through the gaming console. We 
also conceptualised an immersive story telling 
experience using advanced mixed reality 
to travel through time and experience the 
invention process of Duphaston. 

VERTIN HEAD

Vertin is our 50-year-old brand and is a  
therapy leader in Vertigo management.  
We designed Vertin Head, which is a pioneer 
initiative, by using 3D Printing Technologies 
to impart knowledge among patients about 
various vestibular habituation therapy exercises 
for better management of vertigo. The Vertin 
Head helped doctors demonstrate detailed 
information on how to perform various 
excercises to patients in clinic.

0.6

NO. OF DOCTORS
REACHED

PHYSICIAN
ENGAGEMENT

3
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PANCRECARE

This is a Mobile App based interactive platform 
to support patients who suffer from Pancreatic 

through this app, have access to monitor real 
time patient health outcomes. Patients can get 
counseling on diet and pain management.

2
Future-Focused

LIGHT DELIGHTS – 
CELEBRATING LOVE FOR FOOD

Choosing a healthy diet, especially low in lipids, 
is essential for certain patients (such as IBS 
patients) to ensure a healthy lifestyle. With tasty 
food playing a major role in diet decisions, we 
reached out to help these patients by providing 
them healthy low-lipid recipes. For this, we tied 
up with a Michelin star chef, Vikas Khanna, who 
penned a book with over 20 healthy low-lipid 
food recipes from across India. This book, Light 
Delights, was shared with over 2.7 Lakh patients.

30 | Abbott India Limited | Annual Report 2017-18

#CONSTIPATION
CONVERSATIONS 

Considering the need to make people feel 

#ConstipationConversations, we engaged with 
consumers through an omni-channel (print, 
digital, mobile, onground) approach. We also 
conducted an on-ground event and bloggers 
meet, around #ConstipationConversations with 
the celebrity therapy ambassador and women 

(mom blogger) Tweet chat conversation, and  
 

A #FirstinPharma social experiment was  
also created.

350

32

FACEBOOK
IMPRESSIONS

TWITTER
IMPRESSIONS

TWITTER 
VISITORS

15
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ONE ABBOTT WORKPLACE

Abbott employees spread across different 
locations in Mumbai came under one roof in  

coined as the One Abbott Workplace, with 

Mumbai now being able to collaborate closely 
with each other. This initiative is viewed as a 

Creating a best-in-class 
work environment

3
Culture of Collaboration

FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PROGRAM 

Abbott India provides a wider bouquet 
for employees. Employees have the choice to 

according to their needs at their life stages, and 
 

with cash.
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WOMEN LEADERS OF ABBOTT 
(WLA) 

Abbott India's WLA employee network helps 
female employees to :

BETTER DETAILING AND 
CONNECTIVITY

Another key initiative and investment made by 
Abbott India has been the launch of the iPad 

with 6th generation iPads. This technological 
advancement ensures that our employees are 
better connected with one another and can 
use some of the latest tools to engage with our 
customers. This also enables us to move to a 
paper-free doctor detailing model with enhanced 
interactivity for better communication.

Abbott India instituted multiple initiatives to improve the work environment and 
provide a better workplace for employees. Our goal is to enhance workplace productivity 
and provide adequate motivation to employees to excel in their day-to-day activities.

GROW 
Enriching the gender  
diversity ratio

INSPIRE
Meaningful and enabling work 
environment

CONNECT
That is all about creating engaged and 
inclusive work culture
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IN-STRIDE

The In-Stride program is aimed at strengthening 
the leadership pipeline towards senior leadership 
positions (quality and quantity). This ensures 
business continuity for high potential talent 
through simulations, e-Learning, group 
mentoring, individual stretch assignments  
and mentorship. 

MANAGEMENT TRAINING  
IN COLLABORATION WITH  
IIM-CALCUTTA

In line with our Employee Value Proposition 
(EVP) of providing best-in-class exposure,  
access and accelerated development for high 
performers, we launched a Professional 
Development Program in Sales & Marketing  
for our First Line Managers called  
Next Generation Leadership Program.  
This included a tie up with IIM-Calcutta,  
one of India’s Best B-Schools, for a 9-month 

 
 

healthcare industry in India.

Shaping future 
leaders  

LEADERSHIP
PROGRAMS

CREATING LEARNING
OPPORTUNITES

3
Culture of Collaboration
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At Abbott India, we believe that the driving force of our business is its people. 

employee lifecycle; attracting best talent and retention via career management, rewards 
and development across all cadres. Some of the initiatives undertaken in FY 2017-18 include:

We also launched an Executive Program in 
Sales and Marketing from IIM Calcutta for high 
potential Second Line Managers. This is an open 
program and mode of delivery is through an 
interactive online learning platform.

MANAGEMENT TRAINEE 
PROGRAM
At Abbott India, our emphasis on building a key 
differentiator via our marketing practices and 

building a future-ready talent pool of marketers 
we have redesigned the ‘Management Trainee 
Program’ targeting the premier MBA colleges  
in India.

TRACKS

Tracks is a sales force career development 
framework to source talent internally and establish 
a career path for key functions/roles. It provides a 
clear and objective guideline for career movements 
along with cross-functional exposure to build 
leadership skills.

Abbott India Limited | Annual Report 2017-18 | 35



Board of Directors

3
Culture of Collaboration

MUNIR SHAIKH 
Chairman

AMBATI VENU
Managing Director

ANISHA MOTWANI
Independent Director

R A SHAH
Independent Director
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Ranjan Kapur, Independent Director

With deep regret and profound grief, we report the sad and untimely demise of 
Mr Ranjan Kapur. The Company places on record its sincere appreciation for the invaluable 
contributions and guidance received from him towards the progress of the Company.

JAWED ZIA KAIYOMARZ MARFATIA

RAJIV SONALKER
CFO and Whole-time Director

KRISHNA MOHAN SAHNI
Independent Director
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Left to Right : 
Milind Tendulkar, 
Ramanathan V,
Dr Sripupa Das, 
Rajiv Sonalker, 
Sandeep Khandelwal, 
Nitu Bhushan, 
Mahadeo Karnik, 
Ambati Venu, 
Burjor Dadachanji,  
Krupa Anandpara,  
Dr Vijay Patil

Key 
Management 
Team

3

AMBATI VENU
Managing Director
Venu comes with over 
25 years of experience in 
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer 
Healthcare (GSK Consumer) 
in various leadership positions 
across the Indian sub-continent, 
Middle East, North Africa and 
Asia. His last role till September 
2015 was Regional Vice 
President & General Manager – 
Asia, GSK Consumer.

MILIND TENDULKAR
Commercial Director - 
GenNext and Vaccines
Milind has over 27 years 
of experience in Sales and 
Marketing. Prior to joining 
Abbott India, he was associated 
with Abbott Healthcare, Zydus 
Cadila, Emcure and Ipca Labs.

RAJIV SONALKER
CFO and Whole-time 
Director
Rajiv has over 29 years 
of experience in the 
Pharmaceutical, FMCG and 
Engineering industries. Prior to 
joining Abbott India, he worked 
with Bristol-Myers Squibb as 
Director – Finance. He was also 
associated with  Voltas, Johnson 

India and Germany.

SANDEEP 
KHANDELWAL
Commercial Director 
- Women’s Health, 
Gastroenterology,  
GI Prospera, GI Advance 
and Consumer Care
Sandeep has over 14 years of 
experience in the Consumer 
Products Industry. Prior to 

joining Abbott India, he worked 
with Marico as Head-Sales for 
Nature and Personal Care.

RAMANATHAN V
Commercial Director - 
Specialty Care
Ramanathan has over 21 years 
of experience in Sales and 
Marketing in companies such 
as Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories, 
Ranbaxy and Zydus Cadila. 
Prior to joining Abbott India, 
he worked with Zydus Cadila 
as Vice President – Sales and 
Marketing of the Cardiva 
division.

Culture of Collaboration
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BURJOR 
DADACHANJI
Commercial Director - 

International Business 

Burjor has over 14 years of 
diverse experience across 
pharma, management 
consulting, banking and 
operations. Prior to joining 
Abbott India, he was associated 
with Abbott Healthcare, 
The Boston Consulting Group 
and JPMorgan Chase.

KRUPA ANANDPARA
Associate Director - 
Secretarial & Company  
Secretary
Krupa has over 16 years of 
experience and expertise in 
handling company secretarial 
compliance streams. Prior 
to joining Abbott India, she 
worked with Borosil Glass 
Works and Wimco.

NITU BHUSHAN
Director - Human 
Resources
Nitu has over 14 years of 
experience in human resources 
across organisations such 
as Asian Paints, HSBC and 
Mondelez International 
(formerly Cadbury India). In her 
last role, she worked as Head 
– Talent Acquisition, India, 
Indonesia, Philippines, Japan 
and ANZ with Mondelez.

MAHADEO KARNIK
Director - Finance
Mahadeo has over 20 years of 
experience, in Finance. Prior 
to joining Abbott India, he 
was associated with Roche 
Diagnostics, Unilever and 
United Phosphorus.

DR SRIRUPA DAS
Director – Medical Affairs
Dr Das has over 15 years of 
experience in Medical Research, 
Clinical Research and Drug 
Development. Prior to joining 
Abbott India, she was associated 
with Fresenius Kabi, Lupin and 
Sun Pharma.

DR VIJAY PATIL
Associate Director – New 
Product Introductions and 
Therapy Area Strategy
Dr Patil has over 34 years of 
experience in Pharmaceuticals 

joining Abbott India, he was 
associated with Schering Plough, 
Fulford, Aventis, German 
Remedies and Novartis.
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Abbott India is engaged with multiple community support programs. Right from 
helping farmers earn a better livelihood to imparting road safety awareness and 
helping Indians lead safe lives.

Working with  
communities to build  
a better India

3
Culture of Collaboration
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NIRMAL DHARA DAIRY 
PROGRAM

India is the world’s largest producer of milk, 
and nearly half of rural households depend on 
dairy farming for at least part of their income. 
Despite this, many dairy farmers continue to be 
marginalized, limited by middlemen and lack  
of technology and methods to produce higher  
quality milk for a better price. 

Working with Prabhat, a local dairy supplier, and 

directly reached out to nearly 1,500 smallholder 
dairy farmers, half of whom are women, in 
Maharashtra and Gujarat. We developed the 
infrastructure required to expand capacity for 
milk production and delivered robust training on 
topics ranging from the basics of ensuring high-
quality milk to technical dairying skills.

farmers and have established transparent  
pricing mechanisms.

iCARE ROAD SAFETY DRIVE

India has one of the worst records of road 
safety in the world. Road Safety has been a part 
of Abbott’s global focus, targeted at avoiding 
accidents and improving lives. Abbott’s iCARE 
Road Safety Drive is geared towards spreading 
awareness about road safety measures to prevent 
road accidents and save lives.  

Over the years, we have reached more than  
15 Lakh people through this initiative. In 2017, 
more than 3,000 members of our workforce 
educated people they met in medical clinics, 
hospitals and schools about safe driving practices. 
They used this opportunity to share simple, 
actionable steps for reducing road accidents and 
injuries, like wearing a helmet and a seat belt, 
staying alert, obeying speed limits and avoiding 
mobile phone use while driving.  

In 2017, iCARE Road Safety Drive also extended 
its reach by collaborating with 17 schools to 
educate 18,823 students on pedestrian safety and 
road safety awareness.

IMPROVING ACCESS TO 
QUALITY AND AFFORDABLE
HEALTHCARE
 
Abbott India has initiated a project in partnership 
with SEWA (Self-Employed Women’s Association)   
to improve access to quality healthcare in 
India. This program aims to improve health 
outcomes, generate livelihoods and create an 
ecosystem with all stakeholders and key partners 
(Doctors, Pharmacies, Labs), while ensuring both 
affordability of services for SEWA members, 

ecosystem.

The program will educate SEWA members 
on various health conditions while training 
community healthcare workers on providing 
consistent, community-based care. It will 

pharmacies in order to develop a healthcare 
ecosystem to provide quality and affordable 
healthcare facilities and eventually improve 
health-seeking behaviour in communities.
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Awards & 
Recognition
Abbott India continues to receive recognition from multiple industry bodies and leading 
media organisations. We also received multiple awards for excellence at a brand level.

3
Culture of Collaboration

BUSINESS TODAY 
‘Best Companies to Work For’

BEST MARKETING 
CAMPAIGN
#Constipation Conversations

SILVER FOR DIGITAL
MARKETING EXCELLENCE
for Abbott India Radio

NO.1 BRAND OF THE YEAR 
(GOLD)
Udiliv

FIRST RUNNER UP (SILVER)
Duphaston

BEST USE OF TECHNOLOGY
for Training Excellence in The Production  
of Learning Content

GOA STATE POLLUTION 
CONTROL BOARD

Goa Plant -  “Best Environmental 
Practices Award”

AWARDS IN

AWACS
MARKETING EXCELLENCE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT  
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Seventy-fourth 
Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
         (` in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

Net Sales 3273,90.01

Other Operating Income 33,22.16

Other Income 116,98.72

Total Income 3424,10.89

621,48.26

401,21.78

Retained Earnings and 
Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI)

1047,45.13

401,21.78

OCI arising from  
re-measurement of (1,07.64)

(84,99.72) -

-

(17,30.34)

(40,12.18)

Balance carried forward 1305,17.03

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)
E

out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India 

DIVIDEND
` 

dividend of ` 
`  

`  
` ` 

` 

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
I

 
 

INDIAN HEALTHCARE ENVIORNMENT
I

 
 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT
 

` 

ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

 

  Draft Pharmaceutical Policy, 2017 -

 

  Price Controls -
scope of price controls increased under the Drug Price Control 

  National Health Protection Scheme -

`

  Uniform Code of Pharmaceuticals Marketing Practices 
(UCPMP) -

  Increasing Digital Penetration -

  Regulation of OTC Drugs -
 

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Financial Performance

Total Revenue

` 

` 

` ` 

Other Income

 
`

`

` 

Material Cost

resulted in decrease in Material Cost as a percentage of Sales from 

Employee Cost

mainly due to merit increases and impact of change in monetary 

Other Expenses
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` 

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

the systems and also launched many initiatives such as providing 

 

Division-wise Performance

 

 

 

(i) Women’s Health & Gastrointestine, Gastroenterology,  
GI Prospera and GI Advance Division

- Women’s Health & Gastrointestine

Cystofert (Polycystic Ovary 

- Gastroenterology

- GI Prospera

 

- GI Advance

(ii) Specialty Care Division

- Metabolics

During the year  

- Central Nervous System

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW
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(iii) GenNext and Vaccines Division

This Division includes the therapy areas of Pain Management and 
Vitamins. It comprises multi-specialty drugs and applications, and 
is primarily aimed at general physicians. The key brands include 
Brufen (pain killer), Duvadilan (peripheral vasodilator), Zolfresh 
(sleep management), Arachitol Nano (Vitamin D preparations) 
and Digecaine (antacid anaesthetic).

The Company has a licensing arrangement with Bharat Biotech 
India Limited to market vaccines in immunology segment.  

vaccine), Enteroshield (typhoid vaccine) and Rotasure (rotavirus 
diarrhea vaccine).

- GenNext

This Buisness Unit has shown a negative growth of 2.6%; 
however, Arachitol Nano and Duvadilan have shown positive 
growth. Zolfresh retains number 1* position in its participated 
market.

- Vaccines

This Business Unit showed growth of 59.7% and contributed 
3.4% of Sales for the year. The double digit growth was driven by 

participated market this year.

(iv) Consumer Care Division

This Division is present in the Over The Counter (OTC) antacid 
segment and mainly promotes all variants of Digene (antacid – 

The Division focuses on connecting with patients through 
positioning of its products mainly through mass media, social 
media and point of sale promotion. New advertisement and 
marketing strategies will help sustaining the growth of this 
portfolio. The Division showed growth of 10.6% over the previous 
year.

During the year, 5 new products - Rashfree Natural Cream (Diaper 
Rash Cream), Digene Paan Flavour (Antacid), Digene Pudina Pearls 

Relief Ointment) were launched.

MEDICAL RESEARCH AND KNOWLEDGE SHARING 
INITIATIVES

Generation Studies and Registration Studies for innovative 
products developed by Innovation and Development (I&D) teams, 

In addition, training imparted to Healthcare professionals (HCPs) 
during clinical studies via Good Clinical Practice (GCP), drives the 

congress presentations. The health authority of India approved  
3 studies submitted and presented by the Company. The Company 
received approvals to conduct phase 3 studies in adults/elderly 

to raise awareness on clinical trials.

Some of the notable studies are in therapy segments of Migraine, 
Metabolic Syndrome, Constipation, Insomnia and Preterm which 
were presented/published at different national/international 
congresses during the year under review.

OUTLOOK

IMS Health has forecasted the Indian Pharmaceutical Market to 
grow at a compounded annual growth rate of 9.7% between 2017 

` 2000 billion by 2022.

For the near future, after an in-depth overview of our strength and 

to leverage for growth. Some of these are :

-  Shape therapies to accelerate existing key brands : 

brand building, innovative marketing campaigns and 
partnerships to help patients and physicians. This will 
ensure we continue growing faster than the market and 
drive our therapy leadership.

-  Provide services that go beyond just the pill : 

developed a holistic end-to-end solution in the gut space 

and nutrition advice for patients.

-  Increase portfolio depth through the launch of new 
products in our existing therapy areas : 

  During the year, we have launched 21 new products and have a 
robust plan for future launches.

-  Focus on internal talent development, engagement, 
retention and capability building :

*Sources : IMS Health



48 ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED

-  Digital differentiation and use of technology : 

 

engagement through augmented and virtual reality interfaces 

RISKS AND CONCERNS

 

continue to play an active role of regulator for drug prices and 

Although no concrete proposals to introduce direct controls on 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

 

 

  Senior Management have oversight of the compliance 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW
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India Talent Strategy

Pursuing an integrated approach to talent management helps us to 

Women Leaders of Abbott

greater achievement and advancement throughout their careers is 

retaining and advancing female talent in the organisation  
 

Leadership Programs

Feeder Pool 
Development Program

Differential Hiring Strategy
Sales Management Trainee Program

Sales Leadership Development Program
an internal career development program designed to source 

Uniform Assessments for First Line and Second Line 
Manager roles

Executive 
Program in Sales & Marketing

Coaching Culture

a very innovative initiative aimed at identifying and recognising 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions and 
Materiality

 

 

Details of Related Party Transactions

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

 

` 

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

 

DIRECTORS

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW
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Declaration of Independence

 
 

Number of Meetings of the Board

Policy on Nomination and Appointment of Directors/ Criteria 
for appointment of Senior Management and Remuneration 
Policy

appointment of Senior Management and Remuneration Policy as 

Performance Evaluation of the Board, Board Committees  
and Directors

le at 

 

and Remuneration Committee meet the individual Directors to 

Committee conducted performance evaluation of each 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

 
 

Role of the Committee is provided in detail in the Corporate 

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

AUDITORS’ REPORT

COST AUDITORS

 
`  

INTERNAL AUDITORS

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 

 

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

Health and Safety :

strategy aims to develop a standardised approach to foster 

implemented promptly to resolve issues impacting Plant safety 
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Introduction of closed loop system for Chloroform handling 
 

Environment :

 

 

 

F

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER DISCLOSURES 
AS PER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2014

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Statement containing Particulars of Employees pursuant 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

this Report

DISCLOSURES OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS 
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

FIXED DEPOSITS

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND 
GUARANTEES

` 

GENERAL

 

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

EMPLOYEES

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

 

For and on behalf of the Board

Munir Shaikh        R A Shah
Chairman         Director
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1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy

 Policy Statement :

  

  
 

 

  Enhancing access to healthcare across the country for a 

grants for education healthcare and livelihood of 

 

 

2. Composition of CSR Committee :

Sr. 
No.

Name of Member Category

Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni Independent Director
3 Managing Director

years* :
 `

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount 
as in item 3 above) :

 `

` 

(` in Lakhs)
Sr.
No.

CSR Project Name Schedule VII 
Category

Location Amount 
Outlay 

(Budget)

Amount spent on the 
projects or programs 

1) Direct 
2) Overheads

Cumulative 
Expenditure

Amount Spent : 
Direct or through 

Implementing 
Agency

Pan-India Direct
Implementation

Maharashtra
Direct

Implementation

3

Delivery Model through 

Pan-India Direct 
Implementation

iCARE Road Safety Drive Promoting Education Pan-India Direct
Implementation

Total 9,12.22 9,12.22 9,12.22

The Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee of the Board of Directors –

           Munir Shaikh                    Krishna Mohan Sahni

ANNEXURE I 
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ANNEXURE II
Policy on Nomination and Appointment of Directors/Criteria for Appointment of Senior Management

Development

    Its employees
    Its customers
    Social issues
    Regulatory authorities

each meeting

through useful and pertinent 

management

1. Purpose :

Directors and Senior Management and criteria for 

a Director and matters related to the appointment and 

2. Objective :

3. Criteria for appointment of Directors :

      Active or recently retired Chairman and Chief 

  

  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW

57

8. Term/Tenure :

retiring Director in the same position even after 

9. Independent Director :

10.  Non- Executive Director (other than Independent 
Director) :

11. Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management :

   Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall 
retire as per the Company policy or their employment 

12. Removal :

 

    
committee meetings

4. Other Positive Attributes for Directors :

5. Independence :

candidate shall meet the criteria of Independence as set 

6. Criteria for Appointment of Senior Management :

7. Appointment Mechanism :

Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
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13. Succession Planning :

 

14. Review of the Policy :

ANNEXURE

1. Criteria for Independence :

or more of its gross turnover or total income or 

relatives shall hold or has held the position of a Key 

 

   
company secretaries in practice or cost 

 

one person is related to the other in such manner as may 

Remuneration Policy

1. Purpose :

every Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

2.  Overview :
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is clear and meets appropriate performance 

and Senior Management Personnel involves 

3. Company Philosophy :

performing companies outside of the healthcare arena 

 

the changing needs of our employees and our diverse 

 

  

 

 

5.  Remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (Independent 
& Non- Independent Directors) :

 

independent Director for professional advice 
from Independent advisors in the furtherance of 
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6.  Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”), Executive 
Directors (“ED”) :

 

7. Minimum Remuneration :

8. Provisions for excess Remuneration :

refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is 

9.  Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”), Senior Management 
and Other Employees :

  Periodic surveys of appropriate comparison 

performance of the Company in general and 

10. Merit Pay :

focus solely on individual performance against goals and 

11. Policy Implementation :

 

12. Review of this Policy :

 

ANNEXURE TO THE POLICY
Sr.
No.

Board/Committee Meeting Amount per Meeting 
per Director (`)

Audit Committee
3

Committee
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ANNEXURE III

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

I further report that :

I further report that :

Neena Bhatia
Practicing Company Secretary
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Neena Bhatia
Practicing Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE IV
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

A. Conservation of Energy
 i. The Energy conservation measures taken

  -  Intermediate product container cleaning machine 

 ii.  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy

  Nil

 iii.  The Capital Investment on Energy Conservation 
Equipment

  ` 

B. Technology Absorption

 i. The efforts made towards Technology Absorption

  Pneumatic pumps installed for paste charging in 

  Closed loop system installed for chloroform transfer 

  

cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution

 

  

 

 iii.  In case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 

 iv. Expenditure on Research & Development

Sr. No. Particulars ` in Lakhs
Capital

Recurring

C.  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars  ` in Lakhs
A. Total Foreign Exchange used

For dividend remittance

B. Total Foreign Exchange earned

Service income

Other earnings
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ANNEXURE V

FORM NO. MGT 9

i. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company

Yes

ii. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main Products/ 
Services

NIC Code of the Product/Service % to total turnover of the Company

Pharmaceuticals

iii. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.
No.

Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable section

NA

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i Category-wise Share Holding
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year

Demat Physical Total % of Total
Share

Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares

A. Promoters
Indian

 - - - - - - - -- -
 - - - - - - - -- -
 - - - - - - - -- -
 - - - - - - - -- -
 - - - - - - - -- -
 Any other - - - - - - - -- -

Sub-total (A)(1) : - - - - - - - -- -
Foreign

 - - - - - - - - -
 - - - - - - - - -
 - - -
 - - - - - - - - -
 Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A)(2) : - - -
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 15934048 - 15934048 74.99 15934048 - 15934048 74.99 -
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change 
during 

the year

Demat Physical Total % of Total
Share

Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares

B. Public Shareholding
Institutions

 Mutual Funds
 
 - - - - - - - - -
 - - - - - - - - -
 Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
 Insurance Companies - -
 FIIs -
 Foreign Venture 

Capital Investors - - - - - - - - -

 
Investor - - - - - - - - -

 
- -

Sub-total (B)(1) : 1887110 708 1887818 8.88 1901062 458 1901520 8.95 +0.07%
Non-Institutions

 
  Indian
  Overseas - - - - - - - - -

 Individuals
   Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto `

   Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 

`

 
 Alternative 

Investment Fund - - - - -

 - - - - -
 -
 - -
 
 - - - - -
 Investor Education 

and Protection Fund 
Authority

- - - - -

 Unclaimed Suspense 
Account - - - - -

 - - - - -
 - - - - - - - - -

 - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (B)(2) : 2816856 610580 3427436 16.13 2885628 528106 3413734 16.07  -0.06%
Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 4703966 611288 5315254 25.01 4786690 528564 5315254 25.01 -

C. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 20638014 611288 21249302 100.00 20720738 528564 21249302 100.00 -
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the Year % change
in share
holding
during

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares

- - -

- - -

- - -

Total 15934048 74.99 - 15934048 74.99 - -

iii. No Change in the shareholding of the Promoters during the year.

iv.  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS 
OF GDRS AND ADRS)

Sr. 
No

Name Shareholding Cumulative shareholding 
during the year (1/04/2017 

to 31/03/2018)

No. of Shares at 
the beginning 

of the year 
(1/04/2017)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Date Increase /
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

FUND

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Sr. 
No

Name Shareholding Cumulative shareholding 
during the year (1/04/2017 

to 31/03/2018)

No. of Shares at 
the beginning 

of the year 
(1/04/2017)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Date Increase /
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

-

-

-

-

CAP FUND

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - -

-

-

-

- -

-

-

-

-

- - -

-

-

-

- -

FUND

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Sr. 
No

Name Shareholding Cumulative shareholding 
during the year (1/04/2017 

to 31/03/2018)

No. of Shares at 
the beginning 

of the year 
(1/04/2017)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

Date Increase /
Decrease in 

shareholding

Reason No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares 
of the 

company

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - -

-

-

-

- -

-

-

-

-

FUND

-

333

-

-

-

v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sr.
No.

For each of the Directors and KMP (along with relatives) Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

Mr R A Shah (along with relatives) No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of 
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

- - - -

At the end of the year
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vi. INDEBTEDNESS

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Total (i+ii+iii)

Addition
Reduction
Net Change

Total (i+ii+iii)

vii. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

 (` in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD Total 
AmountAmbati Venu

Managing Director
Rajiv Sonalker

Whole-time Director 
(w.e.f. August 8, 2017)

- - -
- - -
- - -

Commission - - -
- - -

-others - - -
Others - - -

Total (A) 5,85.89 1,61.64 7,47.53
Ceiling as per the Act ` 

B. Remuneration to Other Directors

 (` in Lakhs)
Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Total 

AmountMunir 
Shaikh

R A Shah Ranjan 
Kapur

Krishna 
Mohan Sahni

Independent Directors - - - - -
-

Commission - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total (1) - 17.00 10.50 15.00 42.50
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 (` in Lakhs)
Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
Total 

AmountMunir 
Shaikh

R A Shah Ranjan 
Kapur

Krishna 
Mohan Sahni

- - - - -
- - -

Commission - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total (2) 13.50 - - - 13.50
Total (B)=(1+2) 13.50 17.00 10.50 15.00 56.00
Ceiling as per the Act ` 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than Managing Director
(` in Lakhs)

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Rajiv Sonalker Krupa Anandpara
Company Secretary

 Total

- - -
- - -

3 - - -
Commission - - -

- - -
- others - - -
Others - - -

Total 2,50.00# 58.67 3,08.67

vii. Penalties/Punishment/Compounding of Offences

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty/Punishment/
Compounding fees imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made,  
if any

(give details)
A. COMPANY
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
 Penalty
 Punishment
 Compounding
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ANNEXURE VI
Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other disclosures as per Rule 5 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 :

Company and (b) ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 

Name of the Director % Increase in the remuneration (a) Ratio of remuneration of each Director / 
to median remuneration of employees (b)

-

-

-

-

Ms Krupa Anandpara NA

  ` ` 
attending each of the other Committee Meetings

iii.  Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company :

v.
Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILIT Y REPORT

DELIVERING PRODUCT EXCELLENCE -

IMPROVING ACCESS -

 SAFEGUARDING THE ENVIRONMENT -

SECTION A : GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Company Information

8. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken

SECTION B : FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Company Information

`
` 
`

4. Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
` `
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SECTION C : OTHER DETAILS

SECTION D : BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY (BR) INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

 (a) Details of the Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies : 

  

 (b) Details of BR Head :

Particulars Company Information

2. Principle-wise (as per National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs)) Business Responsibility Policy/Policies

Principle 1

Principle 2  

Principle 3

Principle 4

Principle 5 

Principle 6

Principle 7

Principle 8

Principle 9
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 a. Details of Compliance (Y/N)

Question
Business 

Ethics
Product 

Responsibility
Wellbeing

of Employees
Stakeholder
Engagement

Human 
Rights

Environment Public 
Policy

CSR Customer 
Relations

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

 b. If answer to Sr. No.1 against any principle is ‘No’, please explain why

Question P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
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3. Governance related to Business Responsibility (BR)

Sr. No. Questions Information

SECTION E : PRINCIPLE-WISE INFORMATION
Principle 2 : Businesses should provide goods and services 
that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their 
life cycle

  

 

 

Principle 1 : Businesses should conduct and govern themselves 
with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

T

 

1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption 
cover only the company? 

 

2.  Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/ 
Contractors/NGOs/Others? 

 

3.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 

satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof.
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1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose design 
has incorporated social or environmental concerns,  
risks and/or opportunities.

2.  For each such product, provide the following details in 
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material, etc.) 
per unit of product :

 (a)  Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution 
achieved since the previous year throughout the 
value chain?

 (b)  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) 
has been achieved since the previous year?

Sr. 
No.

Parameter Unit Quantity

KL

3.  Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 
If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof.

4.  Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work?
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5.  Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products 
and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of recycling 
of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). 
Also, provide details thereof.

 

Principle 3 : Businesses should promote the well-being of  
all employees

A Diverse and Inclusive work place

 

Employee Development and Talent Management

 

 

- IN-STRIDE

- Management Trainee Program

- Global Citizen Development Program
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-  Feeder Pool Development Program

-  Differential Hiring Strategy

 

-  Sales Force Career Development (TRACKS)

-  Uniform Assessments for First Line and Second Line 
Manager roles

 

-   NEXTGEN Leadership Development Program for First 
Line Managers 

- Executive Program in Sales & Marketing 

Listening to Employees

Work Life Harmony

Healthy Living Initiatives

- Exercise across Abbott
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- LIVELIFEWELL :

 

1. Please indicate the total number of employees?

2.  Please indicate the total number of employees hired on 
temporary/hired on contractual/casual basis?

3.  Please indicate the number of permanent women 
employees?

4.  Please indicate the number of permanent employees with 
disabilities?

  

5.  Do you have an employee association that is recognized by 
management?

6.  What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognised employee association?

7.  Please indicate the number of complaints relating to 
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 

8.  What percentage of your above mentioned employees were 
given safety & skill upgradation training in the last year?

Principle 4 : Businesses should respect the interests of, and be 
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized

 

 

1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? – 

disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders?

 

 

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalized stakeholders? - If so, provide details thereof.
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Principle 5 : Businesses should respect and promote human 
rights

1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover 
only the Company or extend to the Group/Suppliers/ 
Contractors/NGOs/Others?

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received in 

resolved by the Management?

Principle 6 : Businesses should respect, protect, and make 
efforts to restore the environment

 

1.  Does the policy relate to Principle 6 cover only the 
Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/ 
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others?

2.  Does the Company have strategies initiatives to address 
global environmental issues such as climate change, 
global warming, etc.? Y/N - If yes, please give hyperlink 
for webpage etc.

  

 -  

 - 

 - 

  

3.  Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N
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4.  Does the Company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any 

   

 

5.  Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on 

etc.? If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

  

 

6.  Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the 

  

7.  Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/ 
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) 
as on end of Financial Year.

  

and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1.  Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber or 
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your 
business deals with.

  

 

   

2.  Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations 
for the advancement or improvement of public good?  
If yes specify the broad areas (drop box : Governance and 
Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development 
Policies, Energy Security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable 
Business Principles, Others)

  
 

Principle 8 : Businesses should support inclusive growth and 
equitable development

projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8?  
If yes, details thereof.

 iCARE Road Safety Drive
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 Nirmal Dhara Dairy Development Program

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

  Health Clinics - Programs to expand Awareness and  
Access to Healthcare

  

  

e 

d
 

  Creating a Sustainable Healthcare Delivery Model 
through Livelihoods

  

  

 

  

2.  Are the programs/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/government 
structures/any other organisation?

 

i

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
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4.  What is your Company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects and the details of the 
projects undertaken)?

Particulars ` in Lakhs

i

5.  Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

  

Principle 9 : Business should engage with and provide value to 
their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1.  What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases 

  

2.  Does the Company display product information on the 
product label, over and above what is mandated as per 
local laws?

  

Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible 
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during 

 
If so, provide details thereof.

   
 

4.  Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends? 

 

For and on behalf of the Board

Munir Shaikh     R A Shah

1
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R E P O R T  O N  C O R P O R AT E 
G O V E R N A N C E

ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to conduct 
its business in a manner, which is ethical and transparent with all 
the stakeholders of the Company, including members, creditors 
and employees. The Company operates in compliance with all 
regulatory and policy requirements as well as industry ethical 
guidelines. The Company also has strict guiding principles laid out 
and communicated through its Code of Business Conduct, which 
is subject to regular audits to ensure that controls and compliances 
are maintained at a high standard. The Company’s philosophy on 
Corporate Governance is, thus, concerned with the ethics, values 
and morals of the Company and its directors, who are expected to 
act in the best interests of the Company and remain accountable to 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a)  As on the date of this Report i.e. May 14, 2018, the Board 
comprises 7 Directors including 2 Executive and 5 Non-
Executive Directors, of which 3 are Independent Directors. 
The Directors are professionals, having expertise in their 
respective functional areas and bring a wide range of skills 
and experience to the Board.

b)  The composition of the Board of Directors, their attendance 
at the Board Meetings held during the year under review 
and at the last Annual General Meeting along with the 
number of directorships and memberships held in various 
committees in other companies, as on March 31, 2018, are 
given in the table below :

Name of the Director Category of
Directorship

Total 
Board 

Meetings 
held in 
2017-18

 Attendance at Number of 
Directorships 

in other 
companies1

Number of 
Committee 

positions 
in other 

companies2

Board 
Meetings 

held in 
2017-18

Annual 
General
Meeting

(July 18, 2017)

Mr Munir Shaikh
Chairman of the Board

Non-Executive Director 7 6 Yes 2 NIL

Mr Ambati Venu
Managing Director

Executive Director 7 7 Yes NIL NIL

Mr R A Shah Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

7 7 Yes 113 73

Mr Kaiyomarz Marfatia Non-Executive Director 7 7 Yes NIL NIL

Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

7 7 Yes NIL NIL

Mr Rajiv Sonalker
Whole-time Director
(appointed effective August 8, 2017)

Executive Director 7 4 NA NIL NIL

Ms Anisha Motwani
(appointed effective April 25, 2018)

Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

7 NA NA 54 2

Mr Sachin Dharap
(resigned effective August 8, 2017)

Non-Executive Director 7 2 Yes NIL NIL

Mr Ranjan Kapur
(demised on January 27, 2018)

Non-Executive, 
Independent Director

7 4 Yes 65 1

Mr Bhasker Iyer
(resigned effective March 31, 2018)

Non-Executive Director 7 7 Yes NIL NIL

Ms Nancy Berce
(resigned effective March 31, 2018)

Non-Executive Director 7 2 Yes NIL NIL

1.  Includes directorship in private companies, alternate directorship and directorship in foreign companies. However, it does not include the directorships in 
companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.  Includes Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

3.  Mr R A Shah holds directorship in 9 other public companies, 1 private company and 1 foreign company. His directorships include Chairmanship of 3 companies 
and Vice-Chairmanship of 1 company and 1 alternate directorship. His Committee positions include Chairmanship of 4 committees.

4.  Ms Anisha Motwani holds directorship in  4 other public companies and 1 private company.

5.  Mr Ranjan Kapur ceased to be Director due to his sad demise on January 27, 2018. He held directorships in 1 other public company and 5 private companies.
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c)   During the year under review, 7 Board Meetings were held on 
the following dates :

  May 19, 2017; July 18, 2017; August 8, 2017; November 13, 2017; 
December 19, 2017; February 14, 2018 and March 27, 2018.

  The option for attending Board/Committee Meetings via 
audio-visual means is provided to the Directors.

d)  Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment 
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as required 
under Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed to the 
Notice convening the Annual General Meeting, which forms 
part of the Annual Report.

e) There is no inter-se relationship between any of the Directors.

f )  None of the Directors holds any shares of the Company except 
for Mr R A Shah, who, along with his relatives, holds 6,874 
shares as on March 31, 2018.

g)  As required under the Regulation 30 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company 

appointments/re-appointments/resignations of Directors 
during the year under review.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMS FOR INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS
As a part of Induction and Continuing Education Program for 
Independent Directors, periodic presentations are made by the 
Managing Director/Commercial Directors/Function Heads at 
the Board Meetings to apprise the Directors with the Company’s 
business strategies, long term plans, budgets, operations and 
performance. In addition, these presentations also provide insight 
into various growth opportunities for the Company, operational 
and environmental challenges associated with the Company’s 
business operations, products, Management’s risk mitigation 
plans, human resources updates, etc.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the Company’s policies 
and procedures, with regards to distribution channels, business 
model, cash and treasury management, accounting systems and 

Directors to acquaint them with the manufacturing process and 
the products manufactured in-house.

The Company also arranges various knowledge dissemination 
sessions by external faculty to keep the Independent Directors 
updated with the current happenings, relevant news and legal/
regulatory changes.

Details of such programs conducted by the Company for the 

at http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/policies.html

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
In terms of requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 25(3) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, a meeting of Independent Directors was 
held on May 19, 2017. The said Meeting was attended by all the 
Independent Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers 
of the Audit Committee of the Company are in compliance 
with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

Composition :

The Committee comprises 3 Independent Directors and  
1 Non-Executive Director as on the date of this Report.

The composition of the Audit Committee, category of its 
Members, their attendance at the Committee Meetings held 
during the year under review is given in the table below :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Member Category Number of 
Meetings

 2017-18
Held Attended

1.
Mr R A Shah 
Chairman

Independent 
Director

5 5

2. Mr Munir Shaikh
Non-Executive 
Director

5 4

3. Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni
Independent 
Director

5 5

4. Ms Anisha Motwani1 Independent 
Director

NA NA

5.
Mr Ranjan Kapur
(ceased to be a Member 
effective January 27, 2018)

Independent 
Director

5 3

1. appointed as a Member effective May 14, 2018.

Ms Krupa Anandpara, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the 
Committee.

Role :

The role of the Committee includes :

appointment of auditors of the Company;

services rendered by them;
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statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to 
the Board for approval, with particular reference to :

 a)  matters required to be included in the Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of  
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

 b)  changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same;

 c)  major accounting entries involving estimates based on 
the exercise of judgment by management;

 e)  compliance with listing and other legal requirements 

 f ) disclosure of any related party transactions;

statements before submission to the Board for approval;

performance and effectiveness of audit process;

the Company with related parties;

it is necessary;

systems;

and related matters;

and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

including the structure of the internal audit department, 

reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit;

and follow up thereon;

internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

  discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any areas of concern;

to the depositors, debenture holders, members (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

Blower Mechanism;

the Companies Act, 2013, Rules framed thereunder and  
Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 or as may be delegated by the Board, from 
time to time.

The Committee also reviews various information prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II as referred in Regulation 18(3) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Meetings :

During the year under review, the Committee met 5 times on the 
following dates :

May 19, 2017; August 8, 2017; November 13, 2017; December 19, 
2017 and February 14, 2018.

Committee Meetings. All the meetings are attended by the 
Statutory Auditors. Internal and Cost Auditors are invited to the 
Meetings, as and when required.

Mr R A Shah, Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the 
Annual General Meeting held on July 18, 2017 in compliance 
with the requirements of Regulation 18(1)(d) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company are in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

Composition :

The Committee comprises 2 Independent Directors and  
1 Non-Executive Director as on the date of this Report.
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The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, category of its Members and their attendance at the 
Committee Meetings held during the year under review is given 
in the table below :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Member Category Number of 
Meetings 

 2017-18

Held Attended

1. Mr R A Shah1

Chairman
Independent 
Director 4 4

2. Mr Munir Shaikh Non-Executive 
Director 4 4

3. Ms Anisha Motwani2 Independent 
Director NA NA

4.
Mr Ranjan Kapur
(ceased to be a Member 
effective January 27, 2018)

Independent 
Director 4 3

5.
Mr Bhasker Iyer
(ceased to be a Member 
effective March 31, 2018)

Non-Executive 
Director 4 4

1. appointed as a Chairman effective April 25, 2018.
2. appointed as a Member effective April 25, 2018.

Ms Krupa Anandpara, Company Secretary, is the Secretary of the 
Committee.

Role :

The Role of the Committee in relation to Nomination matters 
include :

directors and senior management;

and appointed as the senior management in accordance 
with criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal;

positive attributes and independence of a director;

Board, its Committees and individual Directors and review 
its implementation and compliance and whether to extend or 
continue the term of appointment of the independent director 
on the basis of such assessment;

place for new directors and reviewing its effectiveness;

Board.

The Role of the Committee in relation to Remuneration matters 
include :

for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees. The Committee shall, while formulating the 
policy ensure that :

 -  the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 

the quality, required to run the company successfully;

 -  relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

 -  remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and the Senior Management involves a balance between 

performance objectives appropriate to the working of the 
company and its goals.

payable to the Senior Management;

Meetings :

During the year under review, the Committee met 4 times on the 
following dates :

May 19, 2017; July 18, 2017; August 8, 2017 and March 27, 2018.

Mr Ranjan Kapur, then Chairman of the Committee attended the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to answer the Shareholders’ 
queries in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 19(3) of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors :

The Company has devised Board Evaluation Framework and 
Policy, which sets a mechanism and criteria for the evaluation 
of the Board, Board Committees and Directors, including 
Independent Directors.

Performance Evaluation of the Directors is done through 
self-assessment and group discussions, based on suggested 
set of parameters such as Directors’ attendance and effective 
participation at Board/Committee Meetings, their contribution 
at the meetings, leveraging on his/her experience to provide the 
necessary insights/guidance on Board discussions and display of 
candour in expressing views even when they are in divergence 
with the rest of the Board, etc.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of 
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company are in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.
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Composition :

The Committee comprises 1 Independent Director,  
1 Non-Executive Director and 1 Executive Director, as on the  
date of this Report.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
category of its Members and their attendance at the Committee 
Meetings held during the year under review is given in the 
table below :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Member Category Number of 
Meetings 

2017-18

Held Attended

1. Mr Kaiyomarz Marfatia1

Chairman
Non-Executive 
Director 4 4

2. Mr R A Shah Independent 
Director 4 4

3. Mr Ambati Venu Managing 
Director 4 4

4.

Mr Bhasker Iyer
(ceased to be a Chairman/
Member effective  
March 31, 2018)

Non-Executive 
Director 4 4

1. appointed as a Chairman effective May 14, 2018.

Ms Krupa Anandpara, Company Secretary, is the Secretary of 

Company.

Role :

The role of the Committee includes :

transmission and transposition of shares, non-receipt of 
declared dividends, interest, non-receipt of Annual Report, 
duplicate, split, consolidation and re-materialisation of share 

the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and 
provide continuous guidance to improve the service levels for 
members and other security holders;

Members and other security holders and maintain cordial 
relations with them;

at the beginning and end of the quarter and from time to time.

Meetings :

During the year under review, the Committee met 4 times on the 
following dates :

May 19, 2017; August 8, 2017; November 13, 2017 and  
February 14, 2018.

Summary of Shareholders’ Grievances :

A summary of complaints received and resolved by the Company 
to the satisfaction of the shareholders/investors during the  
year under review, is given below :

Particulars Number

Pending at the beginning of the year -

Received during the year 6*

Resolved during the year 4

Pending at the end of the year 2

* includes 1 letter received from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and  
    4 letters from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SCORES).

As on March 31, 2018, there were no pending share transfers.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of 
the Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee of the 
Company are in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

Composition :

The Committee comprises 1 Independent Director,  
1 Non-Executive Director and 1 Executive Director, as on the  
date of this Report.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee, category of its Members and their attendance at the 
Committee Meetings held during the year under review is given 
in the table below :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Member Category Number of 
Meetings 

2017-18

Held Attended

1. Mr Munir Shaikh
Chairman

Non-Executive 
Director

3 3

2. Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni Independent 
Director

3 3

3. Mr Ambati Venu Managing 
Director

3 3

4. Mr Ranjan Kapur
(ceased to be a Member 
effective January 27, 2018)

Independent 
Director

3 2

5. Mr Sachin Dharap
(ceased to be a Member 
effective August 8, 2017)

Non-Executive 
Director

3 1

Ms Krupa Anandpara, Company Secretary, is the Secretary  
of the Committee.
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Role :

The role of the Committee includes :

the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) 
interalia, to include the CSR activities, specify the modalities 
of execution, implementation schedules and recommend the 
same to the Board of Directors;

undertaken by the Company (“CSR activities”), in alignment 
with Company’s CSR Policy and Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013;

internal/external analysis;

monitoring progress/status of implementation of the CSR 
activities;

specialist groups managing CSR activities;

and when needed; 

Companies Act, 2013 or CSR Rules or as may be delegated by 
the Board, from time to time.

Meetings :

During the year under review, the Committee met 3 times on the 
following dates :

May 19, 2017; August 8, 2017 and November 13, 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of 
Risk Management Committee of the Company are in compliance 
with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Composition :

The Committee comprises 1 Independent Director,  
1 Non-Executive Director and 2 Executive Directors as on the 
date of this Report. 

The composition of the Risk Management Committee, 
category of its Members, their attendance at the Committee 
Meetings held during the year under review is given in the 
table below :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Member Category Number of 
Meetings 

2017-18

Held Attended

1.
Mr Ambati Venu 
Chairman

Managing 
Director

1 1

2. Mr Kaiyomarz Marfatia
Non-Executive 
Director

1 1

3. Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni
Independent 
Director

1 1

4. Mr Rajiv Sonalker
Whole-time 
Director

1 1

5.
Mr Sachin Dharap
(ceased to be a Member 
effective August 8, 2017)

Non-Executive 
Director

1 NA

Ms Krupa Anandpara, Company Secretary, is the Secretary  
of the Committee.

Role :

The role of the Committee includes :

Framework is being assessed and that action is taken if it is 
inadequate;

including top risks and mitigation, to the Audit Committee 
and Board;

and ensuring that processes to mitigate them are effective;

time to time;

time.

Meetings :

During the year under review, the Committee met once on 
February 14, 2018.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors are paid remuneration in accordance 
with the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Remuneration Policy of the Company. Such remuneration is 
considered and approved by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the 
Company.
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Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors are as follows :

(` in Lakhs)

Terms of Agreement Mr Ambati Venu
Managing Director

Mr Rajiv Sonalker
Whole-time Director  
(w.e.f. August 8, 2017)

Period of appointment 5 years 2 years

Date of appointment September 29, 2016 August 8, 2017

Salary & Other Allowances 2,94.88 95.29

Perquisites 1,73.33 33.28

Contribution to Provident Fund 12.40 5.41

Performance Linked Incentive 1,05.28 27.66

Notice Period Three Months Three Months

Severance Fees There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.

Stock Option The Company does not have any Stock Option Plan for its employees. However, Managing Director and  
Whole-time Director are entitled to Restricted Stock Units of Abbott Laboratories, USA under its “Long Term 

Non-Executive Directors

During the year under review, Mr Munir Shaikh, Mr R A Shah, Mr Ranjan Kapur and Mr Krishna Mohan Sahni were paid sitting 
fees amounting to ` 13.50 Lakhs, ` 17.00 Lakhs, ` 10.50 Lakhs and ` 15.00 Lakhs respectively, for attending Board Meetings and 
various Committee Meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company. Mr R A Shah is a Partner of  
M/s Crawford Bayley & Co. During the year, the Company availed various professional services from  M/s Crawford Bayley & Co. 
and remitted ` 4.93 Lakhs towards the same. The quantum of professional fees received by M/s Crawford Bayley & Co., from the 
Company forms a very small portion of the total revenues of M/s Crawford Bayley & Co and also a marginal portion of total revenue 
of the Company.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Financial 
Year

Date Time Location No. of Special Resolutions

2016-17 July 18, 2017 3.30 p.m. RAMA AND SUNDRI WATUMULL AUDITORIUM, K C College,
124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, Vidyasagar Prin. K. M. Kundnani Chowk, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

-

2015-16 July 18, 2016 3.30 p.m. RAMA AND SUNDRI WATUMULL AUDITORIUM, K C College,
124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, Vidyasagar Prin. K. M. Kundnani Chowk, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

1
(Re-appointment of Mr R A Shah as 

Independent Director)

2014-15 July 29, 2015 3.30 p.m. RAMA AND SUNDRI WATUMULL AUDITORIUM, K C College,
124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, Vidyasagar Prin. K. M. Kundnani Chowk, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

1
(Approval of Related Party 

Transactions with Abbott Products 
Operations AG., Switzerland)

During the year, no special resolutions were passed through postal ballot.

As on date, there is no special resolution proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has the Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy called “Abbott India Limited – Procedure for Internal Investigations” 
in place, in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India  
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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The said Policy is available on the website of the Company at  
http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/policies.html Adequate 
safeguards are provided against victimization of director(s) or 
employee(s) or any other person who raises concerns using such 
mechanism.

No employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
a)  The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published 

in one English daily newspaper (Business Standard - pan 
India) and one Marathi newspaper (Loksatta) published from 
Mumbai. The quarterly results/shareholding patterns/notice 

the website of the Company at www.abbott.co.in

b)  During the year under review, the Company has, upon 
request, met a few institutional investors in one-on-one 
meetings and group meetings. No presentations were made to 
the institutional investors/analysts.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
i) Annual General Meeting

 Wednesday, July 18, 2018 at 3.30 p.m.

  RAMA WATUMULL AUDITORIUM, K C College,  
124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, Vidyasagar Prin. K. M. Kundnani 
Chowk, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020

ii)  Financial year

 April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

iii)  Book Closure

  Thursday, July 12, 2018 to Wednesday, July 18, 2018 
  (both days inclusive)

iv) E-Voting Period

  From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Sunday, July 15, 2018 
 Upto 5.00 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, July 17, 2018

v) Dividend Payment Date

 On and from July 24, 2018

vi) Listing on Stock Exchange

 BSE Limited
 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
 Dalal Street
 Mumbai – 400 001
 Telephone No.: +91-22-2272 1233/4, +91-22-6654 5695
 Fax : +91-22-2272 1919
 Website : www.bseindia.com
 Email : corp.relations@bseindia.com

paid to the BSE Limited as per Regulation 14 of the of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 L24239MH1944PLC007330

viii) 

  INE358A01014

ix)  Stock Code (BSE)

  500488

x)  Market Price Data (High/Low) on BSE
   (`)

Month High Low

April, 2017 4,863.60 4,356.00

May, 2017 4,441.05 3,996.00

June, 2017 4,426.95 4,120.00

July, 2017 4,615.00 4,170.00

August, 2017 4,478.15 4,151.00

September, 2017 4,280.00 4,035.00

October, 2017 4,420.00 4,100.00

November, 2017 5,401.30 4,210.15

December, 2017 5,707.20 5,167.05

January, 2018 5,666.00 5,210.00

February, 2018 6,109.95 5,243.90

March, 2018 5,895.00 5,300.00

xi) Performance in comparison to broad based indices

 April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

 Normalised (100)
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xii) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

 Karvy Computershare Private Limited

 Unit : Abbott India Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B, 
Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, 
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad – 500 032
Tel No: +91-40-6716 2222;
Fax No: +91-40-2344 0674

B-24, Rajabhadur Mansion,
6, Ambalal Doshi Marg,
Behind BSE Limited,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Tel No: +91-22-6623 5412

Email : einward.ris@karvy.com
Website : www.karvycomputershare.com

  Details of various centres of Karvy are available on  
www.karvycomputershare.com
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xiii) Share Transfer System

  Share Transfer Committee comprising the Directors 

formalities at least once in a fortnight. The said Committee 

split / consolidation, dematerialisation, rematerialisation, 
transfer and transmission of shares.

  Share transfer requests received at the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent are normally processed and delivered within 
15 days from the date of lodgement in cases where documents 
are complete and in order. Requests for dematerialisation 

the depositories within 15 days from the date of receipt of 
complete set of documents.

xiv) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2018

Distribution No. of
Shareholders

% to Total No. of
Shares held

% to 
Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

Upto 500 21,277 94.22 13,81,978 6.50

501 to 1000 690 3.05 4,94,422 2.33

1001 to 2000 351 1.55 5,04,558 2.37

2001 to 3000 111 0.49 2,72,548 1.30

3001 to 4000 50 0.22 1,75,228 0.82

4001 to 5000 33 0.15 1,49,769 0.70

5001 to 10000 31 0.14 2,21,167 1.04

ABOVE 10000 40 0.18 1,80,49,632 84.94

TOTAL 22,583 100.00 2,12,49,302 100.00

xv) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2018

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares % to Total

Promoters 1,59,34,048 74.99

Banks 5,637 0.03

Financial Institutions 1,00,881 0.47

Foreign Institutional Investors 26,442 0.12

Foreign Portfolio Corporation 5,98,494 2.82

Insurance Companies 39,631 0.19

Mutual Funds 11,30,435 5.32

Domestic Companies 1,36,691 0.64

Non-Domestic Companies 471 00.0

Non-Resident Indians 82,350 0.39

Directors & Relatives 6,874 0.03

Unclaimed Suspense Account 24,671 0.12

Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF) Authority

51,809 0.24

Others 31, 10,868 14.64

TOTAL 2,12,49,302 100.00

xvi)  Disclosure in respect of equity shares transferred in 
“Abbott India Limited - Unclaimed Suspense Account” 
in terms of Regulation 39(4) and Schedule VI of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 is as under :

Particulars
No. of 

Shareholders
No. of 
Equity 
Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders 
and the outstanding shares in the 
Unclaimed Suspense Account lying as 
on April 1, 2017

191 24,671

Number of shareholders who 
approached the Company for transfer 
of shares and shares transferred from 
suspense account during the year

NIL NIL

Number of shareholders and aggregate 
number of shares transferred to the 
Unclaimed Suspense Account during 
the year

NIL NIL

Aggregate number of shareholders 
and outstanding shares in the 
Unclaimed Suspense Account lying as 
on March 31, 2018

191 24,671

  
Unclaimed Suspense Account for a period of seven years. 

thereon shall be transferred by the Company to IEPF 
Authority in accordance with provisions of Section 124(5) 
and (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 
thereunder. The voting rights in respect of such shares 
shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims such  
Equity Shares.

xvii)  In terms of requirements of Section 124(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, all shares in respect of which dividend has not 
been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more 
are required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (“IEPF Authority”).

  Accordingly, 51,809 Equity Shares held by 317 Shareholders 
were transferred to the IEPF Authority in November, 2017.  
No claims have been received till date.

  The details of shares so transferred is available on the 
Company’s website under the Investor Section at http://
www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/other-information/
unclaimed-dividend.html
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xviii)  Dematerialisation of Shares as on March 31, 2018 and 
liquidity

  The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in 
electronic mode and are available for trading with both the 
depositories in India namely, National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL).

  2,07,20,738 Equity Shares representing 97.51% of the  
Company’s total paid-up share capital were held in 
dematerialised mode, as on March 31, 2018.

xix)  The Company has not issued any GDR/ADR or Warrants 
or any other convertible instruments.

xx) Foreign Exchange risk and hedging activities

  The Company has foreign exchange exposure and hedging is 

xxi) Plant Location

  L-18/19, Verna Industrial Estate, Goa

xxii) Address for correspondence

 Abbott India Limited
 CIN : L24239MH1944PLC007330

Shares Department
3, Corporate Park,
Sion-Trombay Road,
Mumbai – 400 071
Tel No: +91-22-6797 8888
Fax: +91-22-6797 8727

Shares Department
16th Floor, Godrej BKC,
Plot C – 68, ‘’G’’ Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Near MCA Club, Bandra (East),
Mumbai – 400 051
Tel No: +91-22-3816 2000
Fax: +91-22-3816 2400

Email : investorrelations.india@abbott.com
Website : www.abbott.co.in

 Karvy Computershare Private Limited
 Unit : Abbott India Limited

Karvy Selenium Tower B, 
Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, 
Financial District, 
Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad – 500 032
Tel No: +91-40-6716 2222
Fax No: +91-40-2344 0674

B-24, Rajabhadur Mansion,
6, Ambalal Doshi Marg,
Behind BSE Limited,
Fort, Mumbai - 400 001
Tel No: +91-22-6623 5412

Email : einward.ris@karvy.com
Website : www.karvycomputershare.com

OTHER DISCLOSURES

a)  There were no Related Party Transactions entered into by the 

interests of the Company at large.

b)  Policies on dealing with Related Party Transactions and 
Materiality and on Determination of Materiality of Event or 
Information for Disclosure are disclosed on the website of 
the Company at http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/
policies.html

c)  In the preparation of Financial Statements, no differential 
treatment from that prescribed in the Accounting Standards 
has been followed.

d)  Pursuant to the disclosures made by the Senior Management 

transactions entered into by them where they have personal 

interest of the Company at large.

e)  There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, 
no penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchange or the Securities and Exchange Board of India or 
any statutory authority on any matters related to the capital 
markets during the last three years.

f )  In terms of requirement of Regulation 17(8) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Chief Executive 

format, which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
taken on record by the Board.

g)  Code of Business Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior 
Management lays down various principles of ethics and 
compliance. The Code has been posted on the Company’s website 
at http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/policies.html

h)  The Company has complied with all the mandatory 
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

i)  The Company has complied with all the Corporate Governance 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. As the 
Company does not have any subsidiary, Regulation 24 is not 
applicable to the Company.
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The Members of
Abbott India Limited
3, Corporate Park,
Sion-Trombay Road,
Mumbai – 400 071.

1. The accompanying Corporate Governance Report prepared by 
Abbott India Limited (hereinafter the “Company”), contains 
details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
(“the Listing Regulations”) (‘Applicable criteria’) with respect 
to Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2018. 
This report is required by the Company for annual submission 
to the Stock Exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of 
the Company.

Management’s Responsibility

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the 
responsibility of the Management of the Company including 
the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting 
records and documents. This responsibility also includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate 
Governance Report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
AS PER PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER IV OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also 
responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our 
responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in the form 
of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the 

 
paragraph 1 above.

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance 
Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports 

oth issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).  

DECLARATION UNDER SCHEDULE V(D) OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA 
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

As required under Schedule V(D) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

March 31, 2018.

     Ambati Venu 
March 31, 2018    Managing Director 
Mumbai     DIN : 07614849 

Compliance with Discretionary requirements :

i) 
in two newspapers as prescribed by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and 
are also available on the website of the Company at  
www.abbott.co.in In view of the above, the results were not 
separately circulated to all the Members.

ii)  Reporting of Internal Auditors is directly to the  
Audit Committee.

audit opinion.
 For and on behalf of the Board

       Munir Shaikh    R A Shah
Mumbai               Chairman   Director
May 14, 2018           DIN : 00096273   DIN : 00009851

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW

95

Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical 
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements 
of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical 
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related 
Services Engagements.

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance 
of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable 
criteria. Summary of key procedures performed include :

 i.  Reading and understanding of the information prepared 
by the Company and included in its Corporate Governance 
Report;

of Directors w.r.t. Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
has been met throughout the reporting period;

 iii.  Obtained and read the Directors Register as on March 31, 

the Board during the year;

 iv.  Obtained and read the Minutes of the following 
Committee Meetings held from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 
2018 :

  (a) Board of Directors Meeting;

  (b) Audit Committee;

  (c) Annual General Meeting;

  (d) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

  (e) Stakeholders Relationship Committee;

  (f ) Risk Management Committee;

  (g) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 

  (h) Independent Directors Meeting.

 v.  Obtained necessary representations and declarations 
from directors of the Company including the independent 
directors ; 

 vi.  Performed necessary inquiries with the management and 

management.

   The above-mentioned procedures include examining 
evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate 
Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of 
work under this report did not involve us performing audit 
tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the 

Opinion

8. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in  
paragraph 7 above, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, as applicable as at  
March 31, 2018, referred to in paragraph 1 above.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

9. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

10. This report is addressed to and provided to the Members of the 
Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with 
its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to 
Corporate Governance Report accompanied with by a report 
thereon from the Statutory Auditors and should not be used 
by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, 
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care 
or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is 
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior 
consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this 
report for events and circumstances occurring after the date 
of this report.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership Number: 49365
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 14, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Abbott India Limited

REPORT ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of Abbott India Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 

Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind 

OPINION
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

 (b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
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with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

 

our opinion and to the best of our information and 

  

amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED

Sr. 
No.

Asset 
Category

Gross Block at 
March 31, 2018 

(` in Lakhs)

Net Block at 
March 31, 2018  

(` in Lakhs)

Remarks
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount 
(` in Lakhs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Due Date Date of 
Payment

Various dates

- Various dates Yet to be paid

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount disputed 
in ` Lakhs (net of 

payments)

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Period to which the 
amount relates

ITAT

Commissioner

Assistant Commissioner

CESTAT

Assistant Commissioner of 

Deputy Commissioner of 

 

Custom Duty

CESTAT
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management, the Company has not raised any money by way 

the management, we report that no fraud by the Company 

during the year under review and hence, reporting 

management, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013  
(“the Act”)

reporting of Abbott India Limited (“the Company”) as of 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

Opinion

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Ravi Bansal

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED
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`

 As at March 31, 2018  
ASSETS
Non-current Assets

78,58.56
2,16.69
2,79.60

 - 

Loans 15,02.58
22,70.67
14,59.96
14,83.65

Total Non-current Assets 150,71.71
Current Assets
Inventories 585,32.72

263,44.30
37,67.71

993,67.32
Loans 205,47.81

40,21.24
15,73.39
89,58.95

2231,13.44
34,33.76  - 

Total Current Assets 2265,47.20
TOTAL ASSETS 2416,18.91
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

21,24.93
1671,51.12

Total Equity 1692,76.05
Non-current Liabilities

55,34.51
Total Non-current Liabilities 55,34.51
Current Liabilities

5,83.88
Due to others 474,78.60

48,98.43
32,81.56
77,46.92
28,18.96

Total Current Liabilities 668,08.35
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2416,18.91

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP AMBATI VENU R A SHAH
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

per RAVI BANSAL RAJIV SONALKER KRUPA ANANDPARA
Company Secretary

BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT MARCH 31,  2018
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`

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

For the Year ended
March 31, 2017

INCOME
Revenue from operations 3307,12.17

116,98.72
TOTAL INCOME 3424,10.89
EXPENSES

295,72.38
1711,22.00

(102,19.94)
8,61.82

393,69.27
Finance costs 3,82.21

16,18.54
475,56.35

TOTAL EXPENSES 2802,62.63
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 621,48.26

TAX EXPENSES
223,51.00
(1,62.69)
(1,61.83)

TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 220,26.48
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 401,21.78

Other Comprehensive Income

(1,67.72)
 60.08 

Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax (1,07.64)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 400,14.14
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

` `  188.81 

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP AMBATI VENU R A SHAH
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

per RAVI BANSAL RAJIV SONALKER KRUPA ANANDPARA
Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,  2018
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`

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL :

Equity shares of ` 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid  Number of 
shares

Amount

As at April 1, 2016
 -  -

As at March 31, 2017
 -  -

As at March 31, 2018  2,12,49,302 21,24.93

B. OTHER EQUITY :

Reserves and Surplus (Refer Note 18)

Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income  
(Refer Note 18)

Total 
Other 
EquityAmalgamation 

Reserve
Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Share Based 
Compensation 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurement 

Balances as at April 1, 2016
 -  -  -  -  -  -

 
 -  -  -  -  -  -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  -

Reserve  -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Transfer from Share Based Compensation 

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Balances as at March 31, 2017

 -  -  -  -  -  -
 

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  -

Reserve  -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Transfer from Share Based Compensation 

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Balances as at March 31, 2018 37.82 5,22.62 2,52.48 20,95.22 337,25.95 1309,12.39  (3,95.36) 1671,51.12

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP AMBATI VENU R A SHAH
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

per RAVI BANSAL RAJIV SONALKER KRUPA ANANDPARA
Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,  2018
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`

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

For the Year ended

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
621,48.26

14,50.20

1,68.34

1,06.63

28.00

(45,30.26)  -

Finance income (71,39.83)

Finance costs 3,82.21

1,39.02

71.44

81.09

7,53.69

7,97.57

 -

544,56.36

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in :

(i) (87,85.30)

(ii) Inventories (84,69.60)

(iii) (23,29.64)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in :

(i) 4,77.76

(ii) 4,10.92

357,60.50

(204,90.13)

152,70.37

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 16.90

(16,74.42)

(1.32)

51,42.28  -

(7,50.50)  -

(105,12.79)

(200,00.00)  -

62,96.33

(214,83.52)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,  2018
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`

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

For the Year ended

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (12.66)

(84,99.72)

(17,30.34)

(102,42.72)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (164,55.87)

202,23.58

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11) 37,67.71

Note :

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP AMBATI VENU R A SHAH
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

per RAVI BANSAL RAJIV SONALKER KRUPA ANANDPARA
Company Secretary
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1. COMPANY INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 2.1 Basis of preparation

basis of accounting and in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the Ind 

the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out 

  

products and the time between the acquisition of 

after the reporting period

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,  2018

reporting period

after the reporting period

months after the reporting period

  b) Foreign currency translation

   Functional and presentation currency

Company are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the 

Rupee (`

   Transactions and balances

  c) Fair value measurement

transaction between market participants at the 

is based on the presumption that the transaction 
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most advantageous market for the asset or 

market participants act in their economic best 

appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

  d) Revenue recognition

   Sale of products

the risks and rewards of ownership is passed on 

   Rendering of Services

    Service income is recognised as per the terms of 

   Interest income

amortised cost, interest income is recorded 
using the effective interest rate, which is the rate 

instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 

   Income from assignment of trademarks

    Income from assignment of trademarks is 

  e) Taxes

   Current income tax

that may become necessary due to certain 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATUTORY REPORTCORPORATE OVERVIEW

109

   

income or in equity, as appropriate and not in 

to set off the recognised amounts and there is an 

   Deferred tax

Sheet approach on temporary differences at the 

reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 

at each reporting date and are recognised to the 

recognised in other comprehensive income or in 
equity, as appropriate and not in the Statement of 

  f ) Property, plant and equipment

additions comprises the purchase price and 

assessed standard of performance and cost of the 

measured as the difference between the net 

    Depreciation is provided, pro-rata for the period 

Method of depreciation Straight line
Type of assets Useful life in years

Anaesthetic Equipment

Computers

   

    Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, 
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  g) Intangible assets

  

for impairment whenever there is an indication 

amortisation period and the amortisation method 

Method of amortisation Straight Line
Type of assets Useful life in years
Software
Trademarks

carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 

  h) Assets held for sale

  

  i) Research and development

asset

    T

producing and making the asset ready for its 

  j) Leases

    The determination of whether an arrangement is a 

and the arrangement conveys a right to use the 

   Company as a lessee

   Company as a lessor

    Leases in which the Company does not transfer 

Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 

  k) Inventories
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costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

  l) Impairment

   Financial assets

  
determine whether there is any objective evidence 

to be impaired, if objective evidence indicates that 
one or more events have had a negative effect on 

amortised cost

determines that whether there has been a 

then the entity reverts to recognising impairment 

  

determined by a range of outcomes, taking into 

events, current conditions and forecasts of future 

   

   
than inventories are assessed at each reporting 
date to ascertain whether there is any indication of 

through discounting of the estimated future cash 

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the 

   
a change in the estimates used to determine the 

have been determined, net of depreciation or 

  m) Provisions and contingencies
   Provisions
   

   Provision for sales return and date expiry :

    The Company as per trade practice accepts returns 

for such returns are estimated on the basis of 

   Contingencies

of one or more uncertain future events not 
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   months 

undiscounted amount during the accounting 

   

amount of contribution required to be made as and 

contribution due for services received before the 

in the current and prior periods and discounted 

  

    The Company recognises remeasurements of 

encashment which is provided for, based on the 

to be made by the Company in respect of services 

  o) Earnings per equity share

  

Company by weighted average number of equity 

of the Company by the weighted average number 
of equity shares considered for deriving basic 

equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds 

are deemed converted as of the beginning of the 
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  p) Share based compensation

   

corresponding credit is given to equity because the 
award represents in substance equity contribution 

recognised for stock options at each reporting date 

best estimate of the number of equity instruments 

  q) Financial instruments

   Financial assets

   Recognition and measurement

of impairment, if the objective of the Company’s 

   Derecognition

   Financial liabilities

   Recognition and measurement

  

amortised cost using the effective interest 

   Derecognition

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 

to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

  r) Cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or 

bank overdrafts, if any, as they are considered as an 

  s) Dividend distribution to equity shareholders

distribution is authorised and the distribution is no 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold 

Land
Leasehold 
Improve-

ments

Buildings 
(Refer 

Note (b) 
and (e))

Plant and 
Equipment

(Refer 
Note (a))

Furniture 
and 

Fixtures
Equipment

Vehicles Total

Gross carrying value

As at April 1, 2016

Additions  -  -
-  -

As at March 31, 2017
Additions  -  -

 -  - -  - -  -
 -  -  -

As at March 31, 2018  37.55  84.38 19,99.34 75,90.42 4,51.84 15,73.67  54.67 117,91.87

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2016
Depreciation charge for the year

 -  -

As at March 31, 2017
Depreciation charge for the year

 -  -  -  -  -  -
 -  -  -

As at March 31, 2018  1.50  19.82 2,44.41 23,76.51 2,37.66 10,00.06  53.35 39,33.31

Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2018  36.05  64.56 17,54.93 52,13.91 2,14.18 5,73.61  1.32 78,58.56
As at March 31, 2017

  Details of Capital work-in-progress 

As at March 31, 2018
2,16.69
2,16.69

 Notes :

Net Block

Class of Asset  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2017

4,20.92

` 0.00* Lakhs `

` 1.71 Lakhs ` 

` 40,29.19 Lakhs ` 
` 34,33.76 

Lakhs `

` 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Software  Trademarks  Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2016  -

Additions  -
 -

As at March 31, 2017  -

Additions
-

As at March 31, 2018 5,46.53 86.84 6,33.37

Amortisation
As at April 1, 2016  -

Amortisation for the year  -
 -

As at March 31, 2017  -

Amortisation for the year
-

As at March 31, 2018 3,41.92  11.85 3,53.77

Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2018 2,04.61  74.99 2,79.60
As at March 31, 2017  -

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

 As at March 31, 2018

 -

 -

6 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

 As at March 31, 2018

 12,12.28  -
For premises with others  1,58.94

 1,31.36
 15,02.58

(a) Break-up for security details :
 As at March 31, 2018

Deposits against tenders :
Secured, considered good  -  -
Unsecured, considered good  1,31.36

 3,96.12
5,27.48

 (3,96.12)
 1,31.36
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7 NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

 As at March 31, 2018
 3,66.07

 19,04.60
 22,70.67

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

 As at March 31, 2018
 4.21

VAT Deposits  2,14.25
Deposits against co-marketing agreement  11,00.00

 1,65.19
 14,83.65

 ` 1,38.87 Lakhs 

9 INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

 As at March 31, 2018
 76,81.75

Work-in-progress  3,67.31
Finished goods  62,37.72
Stock-in-trade @  442,45.94

 585,32.72

  ` 40,88.53 Lakhs ` 

` 3,20.40 Lakhs ` 

` 11,51.89 Lakhs ` 

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 As at March 31, 2018
 240,71.64

 22,72.66
 263,44.30

 Break-up for security details :

 As at March 31, 2018
Trade receivables :

Secured, considered good  -  -
Unsecured, considered good  263,44.30

 11,38.53
 274,82.83

 (11,38.53)
 263,44.30
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11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 As at March 31, 2018

In current accounts  37,67.25
 -

Cash on hand  0.46
 37,67.71

  

12 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 As at March 31, 2018
Margin deposit and deposit against guarantees and tenders  3,14.09

 3,18.23

987,35.00

 993,67.32

13 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

 As at March 31, 2018
Loans

 200,00.00  -
Deposits with body corporates and others

For premises  5,47.81
 205,47.81

14 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS (UNSECURED, CONSIDERED GOOD)

 As at March 31, 2018
Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits  15,05.12

 5,94.80

 16,48.41
 2,72.91

 40,21.24

15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 As at March 31, 2018
 5,44.13

 29,46.29
 12,53.12
 39,11.80  -

 1,42.03
 1,61.58

 89,58.95

  ` 1,18.71 Lakhs 
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16 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

 As at March 31, 2018

 34,33.76  -

 34,33.76  -

  

 

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
 Authorised share capital :
 Equity shares of ` 

 Number of shares Amount

As at April 1, 2016

Changes during the year  -  -

As at March 31, 2017

Changes during the year  -  -

As at March 31, 2018  2,75,00,000  27,50.00

  Terms/rights attached to equity shares

 ` 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital :  Number of shares Amount

Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid

As at April 1, 2016

Changes during the year  -  -

As at March 31, 2017

Changes during the year  -  -

As at March 31, 2018  2,12,49,302  21,24.93

Details of Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid held by the Holding 
Company and subsidiaries of the Ultimate Holding Company :

 As at  
March 31, 2018

 As at  

i)  1,07,19,097
 10,71.91

ii)  37,44,951
 3,74.50

iii)  14,70,000
 1,47.00
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Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the 
Company :

 As at March 31, 2018
 Number of 

shares
 % Holding

shares
 1,07,19,097 50.45%

 37,44,951 17.62%
 14,70,000 6.92%

 1,59,34,048 74.99%

Dividend paid and proposed : For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Dividend on equity shares declared and paid :
` 40 per share  84,99.72

`
 17,30.34

 July 18, 2017
Proposed dividend on equity shares :

` 50 per share 106,24.65
`

` 5 per share 10,62.47 -

 24,02.32

18 OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surplus
Items of Other 

Comprehensive 
Income Total 

Other 
EquityAmalgamation 

Reserve
Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Share Based 
Compensation 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurement 

As at April 1, 2016
 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -

Reserve  -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
 

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Transfer from Share Based Compensation 

 -  -  -  -  -  -
As at March 31, 2017

 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  - -

Reserve  -  -  -  -
  

 -  -

 -  -  -  -  -
 

 -
 -  -  -  -  -  -

 -  -  -  -  -  -
Transfer from Share Based Compensation 

 -  -  -  -  -  -
As at March 31, 2018  37.82  5,22.62  2,52.48  20,95.22  337,25.95 1309,12.39  (3,95.36)  1671,51.12
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Nature and purpose of reserves :

1. Amalgamation Reserve
  

2. Capital Reserve

3. Capital Redemption Reserve

4. Share Based Compensation Reserve

5. General Reserve

6. Retained Earnings

19 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
 As at March 31, 2018

 1,19.21
 1,30.10

 33,80.60
 19,04.60
 55,34.51

20 INCOME TAXES
 The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are : 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Current income tax :
 223,51.00
 (1,62.69)

Deferred tax :
 (1,61.83)

 220,26.48
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Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section - Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year :

For the year ended  
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 60.08
Income tax expense charged to OCI  60.08

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

 For the year ended 

 621,48.26
 (8,38.43)  -

613,09.83
34.61%  212,18.11

 (1,62.69)
(34.40) -

 8,81.67
219,02.69

 1,23.79  -

At the effective income tax rate of 35.44%  
 220,26.48

 Deferred tax :

Balance Sheet

 As at  
March 31, 2018

 As at  
For the  

year ended  
March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended  

Deferred tax assets
 8,87.14  26.85

 3,99.09  (1,81.64)
 3,97.85  9.59

 8,31.03  (4,03.52)
 1,11.74  93.14

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation  (9,25.24)  1,23.10

 (2,41.65)  1,10.57
Net deferred tax assets  14,59.96
Deferred tax income  (2,21.91)

 (1,61.83)
 (60.08)

 (2,21.91)

 As at March 31, 2018

 26,26.85

 (11,66.89)

Deferred tax assets (net)  14,59.96
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 Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net) :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Opening balance as at April 1  12,38.05
 1,61.83

 60.08
Closing balance as at March 31  14,59.96

21 TRADE PAYABLES

 As at March 31, 2018

 5,83.88

 73,07.83
Due to others  401,70.77

 480,62.48

 (a)    Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) *

 As at March 31, 2018

 5,83.88
(ii)  Interest due on above remaining unpaid  -  -

 -  -

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 

 -  -

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -  -

enterprises  -  -

22 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

 As at March 31, 2018
Deposits from a customer  60.35

 3.97

 3,18.23

 41,20.89

 44.66  -

 3,50.33

 48,98.43
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23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 As at March 31, 2018
 6,31.44

 -
 10,67.27  -

Advances from customers  2,37.21
 13,45.64
 32,81.56

24 CURRENT PROVISIONS
 As at March 31, 2018

Compensated absences  25,38.74
 10.60
 34.40

 8,47.78
Superannuation  1,06.30

 25,60.69
 16,48.41
 77,46.92

25 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS 37 ‘PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSET’ 
TOWARDS PROVISIONS FOR SALES RETURN, DATE EXPIRY AND DAMAGED PRODUCTS

 Likely Sales 
returns and 
date expiry

 Likely Sales 
returns - 

reimbursable

 Total

Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2016

Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2017 *

Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 *  59,41.29  35,53.01  94,94.30

  ` 1,95.51 Lakhs ` 

 As at March 31, 2018
Non-current provision :

 33,80.60
 19,04.60

Current provision :
 25,60.69
 16,48.41

 94,94.30

 Nature of Provision :
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26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 3273,90.01
 21,54.06

 3295,44.07

 86.97
 1,20.65

 -
Duty drawback  26.35

 9,34.13
 11,68.10

 3307,12.17

 (a) Sale of products :
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 1271,21.34
 1336,25.89

Liquids  483,97.32
 115,61.44

 14,21.44
 8,09.78

 13,70.85
 30,81.95

 3273,90.01

 (b) Service income includes : 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 16,27.73
 5,26.33

 21,54.06

 (c) ` 8,61.82 Lakhs ` 
` 3265,28.19 Lakhs ` 

27 OTHER INCOME
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 5,20.55  -
 64,56.85

 33.99
Other non-operating income :

Income from assignment of trademarks  45,30.26  -
 28.63  -

Interest income on security deposits  1,28.44
 116,98.72
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28 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

Inventory at the beginning of the year  94,32.09
 278,22.04
 (76,81.75)
 295,72.38

29 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 203,85.21
 1301,17.89

Liquids  147,83.31
 7,11.31

 4,29.91
 3,87.76
 7,62.88

 35,43.73
 1711,22.00

30 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

Finished goods  66,78.06
Stock-in-trade  329,57.03
Work-in-progress  9,95.94

Finished goods  (62,37.72)
Stock-in-trade  (442,45.94)
Work-in-progress  (3,67.31)

 (102,19.94)

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 349,65.69
Contribution to provident and other funds  29,10.99

 7,97.57
 6,95.02

 393,69.27

32 FINANCE COSTS
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 1,86.70
Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate on provisions 

 1,95.51
 3,82.21
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33 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

 14,50.20
 1,68.34

 16,18.54

34 OTHER EXPENSES
For the year ended 

March 31, 2018
For the year ended 

Consumption of stores  4,06.43
 10,26.24
 46,12.37

 45.48
 2,24.79

Repairs (others)  4,75.23
Insurance  3,14.77

 17,16.22
 91,57.20

Freight and forwarding charges  30,59.15
 99,98.93

Commission to carrying and forwarding agents  34,77.85
 5,02.35

Bad debts written off  1,10.21
 (1,10.21)

 -  -

 71.44
 71,32.64

 28.00
 (4,31.10)

 1,31.32
 9,12.22

 46,94.82
 475,56.35

 (a) Payment to auditors 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

As auditor
Audit fees  63.80

 13.75
Limited review  25.50

In other capacity
 21.13

 7.14
 1,31.32
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 (b) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure :

 

programmes

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

 7,87.21

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2018 :  In cash  Yet to be paid 
in cash

Total

 -  -  -

 4,54.87  88.23  5,43.10

 62.18  6.63  68.81

 1,19.82  -  1,19.82

 1,46.35  -  1,46.35

 34.14  -  34.14

 8,17.36  94.86  9,12.22

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2017 :  In cash  Yet to be paid 
in cash

Total

 -  -  -

 -

 -

 (c)

35 COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 (1,53.93)

(13.79)

(1,67.72)
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36 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 401,21.78
 2,12,49,302

Basic/Diluted EPS ` (Face value of ` 10 per share)  188.81

  

37 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

 

 ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

 Discounting of security deposits

  The Company has considered State Bank of India (SBI) base rate of respective periods in which transaction had occurred for 

 Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

 Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

 Share based compensation to employees
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 Intangible assets under development

  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

 Provision for inventories

 Impairment of trade receivables

 Impairment of other financial assets

 Provision for sales return and date expiry

 Non-current assets held for sale

38 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 

  iii) Superannuation Fund

  

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Included in contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
 14,84.71
 3,08.97

Included in staff welfare expenses
 44.37
 41.08
 27.13
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  Gratuity :

Gratuity (Funded)
(Non-funded)

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

I)

at the beginning of the year
 

 45,65.20
  

 1,17.23
 

Interest cost  3,16.27  8.18

Current service cost  4,17.80  1.22

 6,64.26  -  -  -

 (2,97.23)  (10.61)

demographic assumptions
 

 57.39
 

 -
 

 -
 

 -

 (42.16)  (5.48)

 
 1,65.60

  
 19.27

 

obligation at the end of the year
 

 58,47.13
   

 1,29.81
 

II) Change in fair value of plan assets during 
the year

the year
 

 41,53.33
  

 -  -

Interest income  2,97.28  -  -

 8,19.07  10.61

 (2,97.23)  (10.61)

income  26.90  -  -

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year  49,99.35  -  -
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Gratuity (Funded)
(Non-funded)

 As at  
March  31, 2018

 As at   As at 
March 31, 2018

 As at  

III) Net (asset)/liability recognised in the 
Balance Sheet

at the end of the year  58,47.13  1,29.81

year (unquoted insurer managed funds)  (49,99.35)  -  -

 8,47.78  1,29.81

Net liability-current (Refer Note 24)  8,47.78  10.60

Net liability-non-current (Refer Note 19)  -  -  1,19.21

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

IV) Expenses recognised in the Statement of 

Current service cost  4,17.80  1.22

 6,64.26  -  -  -

 18.99  8.18

 29.71 -  -

Total expenses included in Employee 
 11,30.76  9.40

V) Recognised in other comprehensive 
income for the year

demographic assumptions  57.39  - - -

 (42.16)  (5.48)

 1,65.60  19.27

income  (26.90)  -  -

Recognised in other comprehensive 
income for the year (Refer Note 35)  1,53.93  13.79

VI)
obligation

reporting period)  12,13.21  10.61

 29,14.54  43.87

 19,16.95  44.89

 40,97.12  2,00.26
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Gratuity (Funded)
(Non-funded)

 As at  
March  31, 2018

 As at   As at  
March 31, 2018

 As at  

VII)
assumption is as below :

1. Increase/(decrease) on present value of 

the year
(2.75%) (3.91%)

2.90% 4.22%
 -  - 8.84%
 -  - (7.74%)
 -  - 3.64%

 -  - (3.64%)

increase 2.73%  -  -

increase (2.65%)  -  -

 2. Sensitivity analysis method

Gratuity (Funded)
(Non-funded)

 As at  
March  31, 2018

 As at   As at  
March 31, 2018

 As at  

VIII) The major categories of plan assets as a 
percentage of total
Insurer managed funds 100%  -  -

IX) Actuarial assumptions
Gratuity (Funded)

(Non-funded)
 As at  

March  31, 2018
 As at   As at  

March 31, 2018
 As at  

Discount rate 7.75% 7.75%
10% until year 

2 inclusive, and 
7% thereafter

 -  -

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) Ult 
table

Indian Assured  -  -

Age related  -  -
 -  - PA (90) 

Mortality table
 -  - 6%

58/60 years, as 
applicable

60 years

` 8,48.00 Lakhs  
` 
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5.65 years  
8.12 years 

 Notes :

39 SHARE BASED COMPENSATION TO EMPLOYEES
 a) International Stock Ownership Plan (Stocks of Abbott Laboratories, USA, being Ultimate Holding Company)

17,811 shares 
US$ 38.71 

 b) Employees Stock Options Plan (Stocks of Abbott Laboratories, USA, being Ultimate Holding Company)

For the year ended 
 March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
US $

options
Weighted 

average  

 7,700 27.80
 (7,700)  (27.80)

- -  -  -

- -  -  -

 Outstanding at the end of the year  -  -
 -  -

US$ 76.57  
NIL year

  US$ NIL 
  During the year, ` 83.03 Lakhs `
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 c) Employees Restricted Stock Options Plan (Stocks of Abbott Laboratories, USA, being Ultimate Holding Company)

  

 

For the year ended 
 March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
US $

options
Weighted 

average  

 55,667 NA
 28,749 NA

 - NA
 (22,176) NA
 (2,863) NA
 (2,250) NA

Outstanding at the end of the year  57,127 NA

US$ 59.77  

 As at March 31, 2018

0%

18.76%

2.10%

2 years

Weighted average share price (`) ` 3,787.18 ` 

Black Scholes

  During the year, ` 2,91.71 Lakhs ` 

40 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 a. Leases

  (i) Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee
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   Disclosures with respect to operating leases :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 46,12.37

Within one year  45,85.38

 54,83.04

 -  -

  (ii) Operating lease commitments - Company as lessor

` 28.63 Lakhs

 b. Commitments

 As at March 31, 2018

account and not provided for (net of advances)  5,69.73

 c. Contingent liabilities

  Claims against company not acknowledged as debts

` 

` ` 

` 

` 

of the facts and circumstances of the case provided for a sum of ̀  1,11.78 Lakhs ` 

 As at March 31, 2018

 35,00.22

    

41 SEGMENT REPORTING
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42 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
 A) Parties where control exists :

 B) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

  I) Fellow subsidiaries :

  II) Key Management personnel :

 C) Transactions during the year :

I) Transactions with the Holding Company during the year

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Capital India Ltd., U.K.

Remittance of dividend  42,87.64

II) Transactions with Fellow Subsidiaries during the year

i) Remittance of dividend :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

British Colloids Ltd., U.K.

Remittance of dividend  5,88.00

Abbott Healthcare Products Ltd., U.K.

Remittance of dividend  14,97.98
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ii) Sales to fellow subsidiaries :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Healthcare Private Ltd., India

 53,65.79

 54,94.81

iii) Purchases from fellow subsidiaries :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Healthcare Private Ltd., India

 4,57.99  -

 138,76.53

 1,84.84

Conversion charges  2,39.65

Abbott Products Operations AG., Switzerland

 185,78.10

 39,34.76

iv) Purchase of trademarks from Ultimate Holding Company and fellow subsidiary :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Laboratories, USA

 2,83.14  -

Abbott GmbH & Co. K.G., Germany

 4,27.65  -

v) Loan/deposit and interest to/from fellow subsidiaries :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Healthcare Private Ltd., India

Interest free security deposit paid  14,79.87  -

Interest free security deposit received  44.66  -

Alere Medical Private Limited, India

 200,00.00  -

 5,20.55  -



138 ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

ABBOTT INDIA LIMITED

(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

   vi) Reimbursements to and from fellow subsidiaries :

Reimbursement to Reimbursement from
For the  

year ended  
March 31, 2018

For the  
year ended 

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2018

For the 
 year ended 

Abbott Healthcare Private Ltd., India
Shared and support Services  10,52.03  -  -

 32,93.22  -  -

 -  16.42  -

Loan Licensee manufacturing  38.10  1,78.89

Abbott International LLC, USA

 36.98  -

Abbott Manufacturing Pte Ltd., 
Singapore

 -  -  22.45

Abbott Laboratories (Singapore) Pte 
Ltd., Singapore

 24.62  -  -

Abbott Products Operations AG., 
Switzerland

 -  -  1,77.80

   vii) Income from fellow subsidiaries :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

Abbott Healthcare Private Ltd., India

 16,27.73

 28.63  -

Abbott Products Operations AG., Switzerland

 5,26.33

   viii) Key management personnel remuneration * :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 5,85.89

 1,61.64  -

 -

     
` 1,23.72 Lakhs 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

   ix)  Non-Executive, Other Directors’ sitting fees :

For the year ended 
March 31, 2018

For the year ended 

 13.50

 17.00

 10.50

 15.00

 D) Outstanding :

 As at March 31, 2018

Trade payables to fellow subsidiaries 

 56,34.60

 -

 -

 16,73.23

 73,07.83

Other payables to fellow subsidiaries 

 44.66  -

 44.66  -

Trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries 

 22,72.66

 22,72.66

Other receivables from fellow subsidiaries 

 -

 -

 90.39

 35.92

 4,68.49  -

 5,94.80

Loan and deposit to fellow subsidiaries

 14,69.86  -

 200,00.00  -

  * 

  Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties :
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

43 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) AND SECTION 
186 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :

 ` 200,00.00 Lakhs

Nature of transaction

Purpose for 
which the loan 
is proposed to 
be utilised by 

recipient

 As at  
March 31, 2018

 Maximum balance 
outstanding 

during the  
year ended  

March 31, 2018 @

 As at  
outstanding during 

the year ended 

Loan given to fellow 
subsidiary :

Limited, India
Funding working 

 205,20.55  205,20.55  -  -

` 5,20.55 Lakhs, net of TDS ` 4,68.49 Lakhs 

44 FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE
A.

assets/liabilities assets/liabilities

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  

Financial assets/liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost (non-
current) :

 15,02.58  15,02.58 

 22,70.67  22,70.67 

Financial assets at amortised cost (current) :

 263,44.30  263,44.30 

 37,67.71  37,67.71 

 993,67.32  993,67.32 

 205,47.81  205,47.81 

 40,21.24  40,21.24 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (current) :

 480,62.48  480,62.48 

 48,66.84 48,66.84

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value 

Loss (current) :

 31.59  -  31.59  - 

or Loss (current) :

 -  - 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B.
liabilities, other than those with the carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values :

Carrying  
amount

Fair value Fair value hierarchy

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2018

Quoted prices 
in active 
markets 

Level 1

observable 
inputs 

Level 2

unobservable 
inputs 

Level 3
Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans (non-current)

 1,58.94  1,58.94  -  -  1,58.94 

 12,12.28  12,12.28  -  -  12,12.28 
Deposits against tenders (Refer  1,31.36  1,31.36  -  -  1,31.36 

 22,70.67  22,70.67  -  -  22,70.67 
 37,73.25  37,73.25  -  -  37,73.25 

Financial assets at fair value through 

 31.59  31.59  -  31.59  - 
 31.59  31.59  - 31.59 -

Carrying  
amount

As at  As at  
in active 
markets inputs inputs 

Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans (non-current)

 -  - 

Deposits against tenders (Refer  -  - 

 -  - 

 -  - 

Financial liabilities at fair value 

 -  - 

 -  - 

   
valuation technique :

market data
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 

 As at March 31, 2018
(a) Deposits for premises Discounted 

using interest rate 

instrument

Discounted  

using interest rate 

instrument

(b)

instruments instruments

45 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 a) Market risk

  (i) Interest rate risk

Particulars Carrying Amount

 As at March 31, 2018

Fixed rate instruments

 987,35.00 

  (ii) Foreign currency risk
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars (` Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2018

USD Euro GBP CHF USD Euro

 7,42.60  -  -  -  - 

 92.08  -  0.63  13.64 

 82,56.89  6.80  -  13.37 

 -  -  -  -  - 

  Foreign currency sensitivity

  

Currency

As at March 31, 2018

1% Increase 1% Decrease

USD  (74.22)  74.22 

Euro  (0.07)  0.07 

 (74.29)  74.29 

 b) Credit risk

  

credit risk was ` 1578,21.18 Lakhs ` 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

Gross Allowance for 
credit losses

 229,49.52  -  - 

 21,30.99  23.75 

 3,61.20  4.43 

 4,33.66  46.45 

 16,07.46  10,63.90 

 274,82.83  11,38.53 
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2018 

14,92.33

1,52.53

Bad debts written off  (1,10.21)

Balance at the end of the year 15,34.65

  

 c) Liquidity risk

Particulars Carrying 
Amount

Less than  
1 year

 1-3 years  3-5 years  More than 
5 years 

 Total 

 480,62.48  480,62.48  -  -  -  480,62.48 

 48,98.43  48,98.43  -  -  -  48,98.43 

 529,60.91  529,60.91  -  -  -  529,60.91 

Carrying 
Amount

Less than   More than 

 -  -  - 

 -  -  - 

 -  -  - 

46 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

  F
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(All amounts in ` Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

47 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
 

 Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers :

 

48 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUCEMENTS
 Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration :

49

50

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP AMBATI VENU R A SHAH
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director

per RAVI BANSAL RAJIV SONALKER KRUPA ANANDPARA
Company Secretary
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N O T I C E
Notice is hereby given that the Seventy-fourth Annual General 
Meeting of Abbott India Limited will be held at RAMA WATUMULL 
AUDITORIUM, K C College, 124, Dinshaw Wachha Road, 
Vidyasagar Prin. K. M. Kundnani Chowk, Churchgate, Mumbai - 
400 020 on Wednesday, July 18, 2018 at 3.30 p.m. to transact the 
following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
 

March 31, 2018 together with the Reports of Directors and 
Auditors thereon.

` 50/- and special dividend of  
`

3.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr Kaiyomarz Marfatia  
(DIN : 03449627), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

2018-19

Resolution :

   pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (including any 

time being in force), remuneration of ` 6.65 Lakhs plus 
taxes as applicable and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses (at actuals), as approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, payable to M/s Kishore Bhatia & Associates,  
Cost Accountants (Registration No. 00294) for conducting 

 

Resolution :

   pursuant to the provisions of Sections 
149, 150, 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, read 
with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (“the Act”) 
and applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time,  
Ms Anisha Motwani (DIN : 06943493), who was appointed as  

Additional Director by the Board of Directors effective April 25, 
2018 in terms of the provisions of Section 161 of the Act and who 

is hereby appointed as Independent Director of the Company, 
 

3 (three) years effective April 25, 2018.

Resolution :

   Mr Jawed Zia (DIN : 00191276), who was 
appointed as Additional Director of the Company by the Board 
of Directors effective June 1, 2018 as per the provisions of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 

 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and who 

 
be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable 
to retire by rotation.

 

Resolution :

   Mr Rajiv Sonalker (DIN : 07900178), 
who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company 
by the Board of Directors effective August 8, 2017 as per 
the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory 

General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Director of 
the Company.

 

 

Resolution :

  in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

 
re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), consent of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of  
Mr Rajiv Sonalker (DIN : 07900178) as Whole-time Director, 
not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of 2 (two) years 
effective August 8, 2017, at a remuneration and upon such 
terms and conditions as set out in explanatory statement 
annexed hereto.
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   the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term 
shall deemed to include any Committee of the Board) shall, 
in accordance with the statutory limits/approvals as may 
be applicable for the time being in force, be at full liberty to 
revise/alter/modify/amend the terms and conditions of the 
said appointment and/or remuneration, from time to time,  

Resolution : 

 pursuant to the provision of Section 152 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder (including any 

time being in force) (“the Act”) and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, as amended 
from time to time, consent of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the re-appointment of Mr Munir Shaikh  

years and who retires by rotation at this Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, 
as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

Mumbai      Company Secretary
June 1, 2018      Membership No.: ACS 16536

Abbott India Limited
CIN : L24239MH1944PLC007330
3, Corporate Park, Sion-Trombay Road,
Mumbai - 400 071
Telephone No.: +91-22-6797 8888 / +91-22-3816 2000
Fax : +91-22-6797 8727 / +91-22-3816 2400
Email : investorrelations.india@abbott.com
Website : www.abbott.co.in

NOTES:

i. 

  The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, 
should be duly signed and completed and must be deposited 

 
forty-eight hours before commencement of the Meeting.

  A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not 

ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying 
voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act 
as a proxy for any other person or Member.

ii.  Corporate Members intending to send their representatives 
to attend the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 
113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send to the 

together with the specimen signature of the representative(s) 
authorised to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 
Proxies submitted on behalf of Corporate Members must be 
supported by an appropriate Board Resolution.

iii.  A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013, relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the 
Meeting is annexed hereto.

iv.  The additional details of Directors retiring by rotation/
seeking appointment/re-appointment, pursuant to Regulation 
36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, are annexed hereto.

by Members at each Annual General Meeting has been 
omitted as per Section 40 of the Companies (Amendment) 

Auditors, who were appointed at the Annual General Meeting 
held on August 1, 2014 is not included in this Notice.

Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Thursday, July 12, 2018 to Wednesday, July 18, 2018 (both days 
inclusive).

vii.  Final dividend of ` 50/- and special dividend of ` 5/- per 
Equity Share of ` 10/- each, as recommended by the Board of 
Directors, if approved by the Members at the Annual General 
Meeting, will be paid on and from July 24, 2018 to the Members 
whose names appear on the Register of Members as on  

July 11, 2018, as per the details furnished by the Depositories 
for this purpose.

viii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated 
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Accordingly, Members 
holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to 
submit the PAN to their respective Depository Participants.  
Members holding shares in physical form can submit their 
PAN to the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
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ix.  Members holding shares in electronic form may note that 
bank particulars registered against their respective depository 
account will be used by the Company for payment of dividend.

x.  Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
intimate immediately change, if any, in their registered address 
or bank particulars to their Depository Participants with 
whom they have Demat accounts. The Company or Registrar 
& Share Transfer Agent cannot act on any request received 
directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form 
in this regard.

  Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 
intimate change, if any, in their registered address or bank 
particulars to the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

xi.  Members holding shares in physical mode are advised to 
register nomination in respect of their shareholding in the 
Company. Nomination Form (SH – 13) is made available on 
the website of the Company at http://www.abbott.co.in/
investor-relations.html 

  Members holding shares in electronic form are required to 
contact their Depository Participants for registering/changing 
their nomination.

xii.  The Company has transferred the amount lying in the 
following unpaid/unclaimed dividend accounts to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund since the date of last 
Annual General Meeting :

1 53rd Unpaid Dividend 2010 Abbott India Limited

2 Unpaid Final Dividend 2010 Erstwhile Solvay 
Pharma India Limited

  Members whose dividend has remained unpaid/unclaimed 
from the year 2011 onwards, are requested to write to the 
Company for issue of demand drafts for the same.

  In terms of the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF) (Uploading of Information regarding unpaid and 
unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the 
Company has uploaded the required information in respect 
of dividend remaining unpaid/unclaimed for the last seven 
years (as on date of the last Annual General Meeting held on 
July 18, 2017) on the Company’s website under the Investor 
Section at http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/other-
information/unclaimed-dividend.html

xiii.  In terms of requirements of Regulation 39(4) and  
Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, shares which remained unclaimed in the 
custody of the Company are required to be transferred to the 
Suspense Account opened by the Company.

  Accordingly, 24,671 Equity Shares held by 191 Shareholders 
were transferred to “Abbott India Limited - Unclaimed 
Suspense Account” in January, 2017. The Company has not 
received any claims during the year.

  
Unclaimed Suspense Account for a period of seven years. 

thereon shall be transferred by the Company to IEPF Authority 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 124(5) and (6) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder.  
The voting rights in respect of such shares shall remain frozen 
till the rightful owner claims such shares.

xiv.  In terms of requirements of Section 124(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016, all shares in respect of which dividend has not 
been paid or claimed for 7 (seven) consecutive years or more 
are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund Authority (“IEPF Authority”).

  Accordingly, 51,809 Equity Shares held by 317 Shareholders 
were transferred to the IEPF Authority in November, 2017.  
No claims have been received till date.

  The details of shares so transferred is available on the 
Company’s website under the Investor Section at http://
www.abbott.co.in/investor-relations/other-information/
unclaimed-dividend.html

Annual Report are requested to send their queries in writing 
to the Company at least one week prior to the Meeting to 
enable the Company to compile the information and provide 
replies at the Meeting.

xvi.  In case all the joint holders attending the Meeting, the 

names as per Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled to vote.

xvii.  Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual 
Report to the Meeting, as the same will not be distributed at 
the Meeting.

xviii.
Notice of Seventy-fourth Annual General Meeting, remote 
e-voting form, proxy form and attendance slip will be sent 
through electronic mode to the Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories for 
communication purpose.

  Physical copy of Annual Report along with the aforesaid 
documents will be sent by the permitted mode to those 
Members whose email ids are not registered with the 
Company/Depositories or to those Members who have 
requested for the same.
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  Members are requested to register/update their email address 
with the Company/Depository Participants for receiving all 
future communications from the Company including Annual 
Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc. electronically.

  The aforesaid documents can also be downloaded from the 
Company’s website at http://www.abbott.co.in/investor-

xix.  The relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice and Explanatory Statement will be kept open for 

Company during business hours on all working days (except 
Saturdays) upto the date of this Annual General Meeting.  
The aforesaid documents will also be available for inspection 
by Members at the Meeting.

xx. 

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015, 
and Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Company 
is pleased to provide to its Members the facility to exercise 
their vote through electronic means i.e. ‘remote e-voting’ on 
resolutions proposed to be passed at this Annual General 
Meeting (“the Meeting”).

  The facility for voting through Insta Poll shall be provided at 
the Meeting. Members attending the Meeting who have not 
cast their vote earlier by remote e-voting shall be entitled to 
vote at this Meeting. A Member can participate in the Meeting 
even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting 
but shall not be allowed to vote again at this Meeting.

  The cut-off date for the purpose of remote e-voting and voting 
at the Meeting is July 11, 2018.

  The remote e-voting facility will be available during the 
following voting period :

Commencement of 
remote e-voting

: From 9 a.m. (IST) on Sunday,  
July 15, 2018

End of remote e-voting : Upto 5 p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, 
July 17, 2018

  Complete instructions on e-voting including details of  
login ID, process and manner for generating or receiving the 
password and for casting vote in a secure manner is given in 
the Remote e-voting Form annexed to this Report and forms 
an integral part of this Notice.

  Mr Taizoon M. Khumri, Practicing Company Secretary  
(CP No. 88) (Membership No. FCS 993) has been appointed 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

  The results shall be declared by the Chairman or any 
other person authorised by him in writing within  
forty-eight hours from the conclusion of this Meeting.  
The results declared along with the consolidated Report of 
the Scrutinizer shall be immediately placed on the website 
of the Company at www.abbott.co.in and on the website of 
Karvy Computershare Private Limited at https://evoting.
karvy.com The voting results shall simultaneously be 
forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

xxi.  Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the Route Map showing 
directions to reach the venue of the Seventy-fourth Annual 
General Meeting are annexed herewith.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
approved the appointment of M/s Kishore Bhatia & Associates, 
Cost Accountants (Registration No. 00294) as the Cost Auditors 

2018-19 at a remuneration of ` 6.65 Lakhs plus taxes as applicable 
and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses (at actuals).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
framed thereunder, remuneration payable to M/s Kishore Bhatia 

by the Members.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the 

or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for 
the approval of Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, appointed Ms Anisha Motwani  
(DIN : 06943493) as Additional Director of the Company  
effective April 25, 2018, as per the provisions of Section 161 of the  
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (“the Act”) 
read with Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

Further, the Board as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
(“the Regulations”) and based on the recommendations of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed  
Ms Motwani as an Independent Director of the Company, not 
liable to retire by rotation, for a term of (3) three years effective 
April 25, 2018, subject to approval of the Members at the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.
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Ms Motwani has given her consent to act as a Director of the 

Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and meets the criteria of 
Independence as prescribed under the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the Regulations.

In the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and the Board, Ms Motwani is independent of the Management.

Ms Motwani is a seasoned marketing professional with over  
28 years of experience in Marketing across diverse industries. 
In her last executive role, she was the Chief Marketing & Digital 

‘Storm The Norm’, an innovation company. She is also an Advisor 
to World Bank and the Max Group. She was voted as one of the 
50 Most Powerful Women in Indian Business by Business Today 
for three consecutive years since 2009. She was also recognised 
amongst the Top 50 Women in Media, Marketing and Advertising 
by Impact & Colors for 3 consecutive years since 2011. She has 
been conferred Women at Work Leadership Award 2011 by Asian 
Confederation of Business and the Udyog Ratan by the Institute of 
Economic Studies.

Ms Motwani has been in the forefront of behaviour change projects 
such as Swacchh Bharat and Clean Ganga Mission. She writes for 

Post and Marketingbuzzar.com. 

Ms Motwani holds a Bachelor of Science from Sophia College, 
New Delhi and a Masters of Business Administration from the 
University of Rajasthan.

Ms Motwani serves as Independent Director on the Boards of 
Prataap Snacks Limited (listed company), India Shelter Finance 
Corporate Limited, L&T Investment Management Limited,  
PNB Metlife India Insurance Company Limited and also  
a Director on the Board of Quintessentially Lifestyle Services 
(India) Private Limited.

The additional details of Ms Motwani as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India are set out in the Annexure forming part of 
this Notice. Ms Motwani does not hold any shares in the Company.

The Letter of appointment of Ms Motwani containing terms of 
her appointment, will be kept open for inspection by Members at 

working days (except Saturdays).

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives, except Ms Motwani, is concerned 

Item No. 5.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 5 for 
the approval of Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr Jawed Zia  
(DIN : 00191276) as Additional Director of the Company effective 
June 1, 2018, as per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (“the Act”) read with 
Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company. He holds 

Mr Zia is Vice-President of Established Pharmaceuticals 
business of Abbott in India. He has a wealth of experience 
gained in various geographies and functions across the globe.   
Prior to joining the Company, Mr Zia was the Vice-Chairman and 
Managing Director of Novartis India Limited responsible for the 
Novartis Group of Companies. He has a successful career history 
in Novartis working across Pharmaceuticals, Consumer Health 
and Devices in positions of increasing responsibility across various 
functions of Market Research, Brand Management, Marketing 
Management, Division Management and Area Management in 
Ireland, Saudi Arabia, Turkey, Singapore, Canada, Switzerland  
and in India.

Mr Zia has a deep knowledge and extensive experience of building 
businesses from inception. His innate ability to drive growth of 
people and businesses, build brands, transform operations and 
scale capabilities has been the hallmark of his success.

Mr Zia is a graduate in Clinical Pharmacology from All India 
Institute of Medical Sciences, New Delhi and a Master of Business 
Administration from Trinity College, Dublin (Ireland).

Mr Zia has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company. 

from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The additional details of Mr Zia as required under Regulation 
36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and  
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India are set out in the Annexure forming part of 
this Notice. Mr Zia does not hold any shares in the Company.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives, except Mr Zia, is concerned or 

Item No. 6.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 6 for 
the approval of Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr Rajiv Sonalker  
(DIN : 07900178) as Additional Director of the Company effective 
August 8, 2017, as per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (“the Act”) read with 
Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company. He holds 

The Board, based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, also appointed Mr Sonalker as  
Whole-time Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 
(2) two years effective August 8, 2017, subject to the approval of the 
Members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

since 2006. Besides in-depth knowledge of the Company, he has 

having worked in Pharmaceutical, FMCG and Engineering 
industries. Prior to joining the Company, he worked with 
Bristol-Myers Squibb as Director – Finance and in positions 
of increasing responsibility in Voltas, Johnson and Johnson,  

Mr Sonalker has been awarded the “Best CFO in MNC,  
Mid Enterprise Category, by Business World in the year 2016.

Mr Sonalker holds a Bachelor of Science from Elphinston  
College, Mumbai and is a fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

 
Mr Sonalker are as under :

1.  Period of Appointment is 2 (two) years, commencing from 
August 8, 2017;

2.  Mr Sonalker shall perform such duties and exercise such 
powers as are entrusted to him from time to time by the Board 
of Directors (hereinafter called “the Board”), subject to the 
superintendence, control and directions of the Board;

discharge his duties to the Company diligently and to the best 
of his abilities and skills. He shall in all respects comply with 
the Abbott Code of Business Conduct and other Abbott India 
Policies and Procedures;

4.  During the period of his employment with the Company,  
Mr Sonalker shall, whenever required to by the Board, undertake 
to travel in India and elsewhere as the Board may direct;

5.  In consideration of the performance of his duties to the 
Company, Mr Sonalker shall be entitled to the following 
remuneration subject to applicable taxes :

 (a)  Salary and perquisites : upto a ceiling of ` 2 Crores per 
annum; to be paid monthly/annually, as may be approved 
by the Board;

 (b)  Performance Linked Incentive or Bonus : as may be 
approved by the Board; upto a ceiling of ` 57 Lakhs per 
annum.

  In addition to the above, Mr Sonalker shall be entitled to 
Medical Reimbursement, Mobile Phone, Telephone at 

as group insurance and gratuity in accordance with the 
Company’s Rules. Mr Sonalker will be entitled to Restricted 
Stock Units/any other stock options of Abbott Laboratories, 
USA as per his eligibility.

  The Company’s contribution to provident fund shall not 
be included in the computation of the above ceiling on 

6.  Within the overall ceiling on managerial remuneration 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 
thereunder, the Board shall be entitled to add, alter or vary 

perquisites to which Mr Sonalker may be entitled as aforesaid;

 
Mr Sonalker shall be subject to the provisions of Section 197 
and Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 
2013 or any other law or enactment for the time being or from 
time to time in force;

8.  Mr Sonalker shall not directly or indirectly, engage himself in 
any other business or occupation or employment whatsoever, 
without the approval of the Board. PROVIDED HOWEVER, 
that it shall be permissible to Mr Sonalker to hold share(s) of 
any other company(ies);

9.  So long as Mr Sonalker functions as Whole-time Director,  
he shall not become interested or otherwise concerned directly 
or through any of his relatives, if any, in any selling agency of 
the Company, without the prior approval of the Board;

10.  Mr Sonalker shall not, during the continuance of his 
employment hereunder or at any time thereafter divulge 
or disclose to any person whomsoever or make any use 
whatsoever for his own purpose or for any purpose other 
than that of the Company, of any information or knowledge 
obtained by him during his employment as to the business 
or affairs of the Company or its methods or as to any trade 
secrets or secret processes of the Company and he shall 
during the continuance of his employment hereunder also 
use his best endeavors to prevent any other person from so 
doing. PROVIDED HOWEVER that any such divulgence or 

be deemed to be contravention of this Clause;

11.  The employment of Mr Sonalker shall forthwith be 
determined if he shall become insolvent or make any 
composition or arrangement with his creditors or if he is 
guilty of any misconduct or otherwise violates the Abbott 
Code of Business Conduct;
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12.  In case of the demise of Mr Sonalker during the course of his 
employment hereunder, the Company will pay to his legal 
personal representatives the salary and other emoluments 
payable hereunder for the then current month and other dues 
together with any such further sum as the Board in its sole and 
uncontrolled discretion may determine;

13.  Either party shall be entitled to determine this Agreement 
by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing 
in that behalf to the other party without the necessity of 
showing any cause. However, the Company shall have the 
option to terminate the employment by giving 3 (three) 

perquisites in lieu of notice. 

Mr Sonalker is the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company  and  
a Member of Risk Management and Finance Committees.

Mr Sonalker has given his consent to act as a Director of the 

out under Part I of Schedule V and Section 196 (3) of the Act for his 
appointment as Whole-time Director.

The additional details of Mr Sonalker as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India are set out in the Annexure forming part of 
this Notice. Mr Sonalker does not hold any shares in the Company.

A copy of the agreement between Mr Sonalker and the Company 
containing terms of his appointment referred in this Notice shall 
be made available for inspection by the Members at the Registered 

(except Saturdays).

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives, except Mr Sonalker, is concerned or 

Item Nos. 7 and 8.

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in Item Nos. 7 
and 8 for the approval of Members as Ordinary Resolutions.

Mr Munir Shaikh (DIN : 00096273), Non-Executive Chairman of 
the Board retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting of the 
Company in terms of provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, which shall come 
into force from April 1, 2019, no person who has attained the age 

unless a special resolution is passed approving such appointment 
or continuation.  In view of the same, approval of the Members 
is sought through Special Resolution for re-appointment of  

as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.  

Mr Munir Shaikh has held several management and leadership 
positions with Abbott since 1968 in different geographies across 
various businesses. In his last role, from June, 2005 until his 
retirement in 2010, he was the Divisional Vice President, South-
East Asia/Middle-East/Africa, Abbott Nutrition International 
based in Singapore. 

As the Chairman of the Board of the Company since March, 2001, 
Mr Shaikh brings to the Board extensive leadership and industry 

understanding of the Company’s business operations, strategies 
and the business envirionment into which the Company operates.  

governance matters and strategic direction to the Management in 
Company’s business over these years have helped the Company 
achieve several milestones year-after-year.

Mr Shaikh is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants  
of England and Wales. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board is 
of the view that his strong knowledge, independent perspective 

the Company and therefore, recommend his re-appointment.   
Mr Shaikh is not related to the Promoter Companies.  He does not 
hold any shares in the Company. 

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives, except Mr Shaikh, is concerned or 

Item No. 9.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 9 for 
the approval of Members as a Special Resolution.

       
Mumbai       Company Secretary
June 1, 2018       Membership No.: ACS 16536

Abbott India Limited
CIN : L24239MH1944PLC007330
3, Corporate Park, 
Sion-Trombay Road,
Mumbai - 400 071
Telephone No.: +91-22-6797 8888 / +91-22-3816 2000
Fax : +91-22-6797 8727 / +91-22-3816 2400
Email : investorrelations.india@abbott.com
Website : www.abbott.co.in
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